

Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada

Agriculture et la Agroalimentaire Canada

Research Branch Direction générale de la recherche



# Canada's Animal Genetic Resources: Sheep Breeds in Canada

November 1994



Canadian Agriculture Library Bibliothèque canadienne de l'agriculture Ottawa K1A 0C5







c759

1995-3











http://www.archive.org/details/canadasanimalg00otta

## Canada's Animal Genetic Resources: Sheep Breeds in Canada

EDITOR: DR. J. N. B. SHRESTHA

ANIMAL GERMPLASM CONSERVATION AND RESEARCH UNIT

CENTRE FOR FOOD AND ANIMAL RESEARCH

OTTAWA, ONTARIO CANADA, K1A 0C6

Technical Bulletin 1995-3E

Centre for Food and Animal Research contribution number 95-01.

RESEARCH BRANCH AGRICULTURE AND AGRI-FOOD CANADA 1994 Copies of this publication may be obtained from:

Dr. André C. Lachance, Director Centre for Food and Animal Research Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada Central Experimental Farm Ottawa, Ontario, K1A 0C6 (Canada)

#### **ACKNOWLEDGMENTS**

The Centre acknowledges Christiane Hansen and Voyteck Polanski for technical assistance and recording of data; Henry Mucha for assistance in computer programming; Diane Gosselin and Paul Panich for assistance with the telephone survey of sheep breeders.

The first National Workshop on Conservation of Animal Germplasm in November 13-14, 1990 recommended that the Research Branch of Agriculture Canada should play a leading role in conservation of animal genetic resources. This came as a result of the Branch's mandate in research, the availability of scientific expertise in genetics and cryopreservation, as well as live animal resources at various locations across Canada.

It was realized that animal genetic resources in Canada should be catalogued by establishing a data bank capable of networking with similar data banks in other organizations and countries. In response to this recommendation, the Centre for Food and Animal Research (CFAR) is therefore assembling inventories of Canada's animal genetic resources.

This publication documents the inventory of Sheep Breeds in Canada. It has been prepared with information provided by sheep breeders across Canada. We value their willingness to help us in developing this public domain database and catalogue. Only breeders that have provided consent to Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada for the disclosure of their information are shown in the listing. The summary has been prepared from information provided by all breeders surveyed.

Although every attempt was made to contact all sheep breeders in Canada, some may have been unintentionally excluded. Breeders that have not been included, such as those that did not complete the questionaire are welcome to participate in future editions. Although, the sheep statistics change rapidly with lambing, purchase, sale and mortality the numbers presented can be used as a guideline to establish the status of sheep genetic resources in Canada. This information will be useful in developing strategies to prevent the erosion of genetic diversity in domestic animal species and to secure Canada's food and agriculture needs in the future. This inventory would not have been possible without the support of individuals from universities, governments, research centres, commercial breeding establishments, non-governmental organizations and sheep breeders across Canada.

Ardri l. Joshana

Dr. André C. Lachance, Director

Centre for Food and Animal Research

Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada, Ottawa, Ontario, K1A 0C6 (Canada)

First Edition: November 1994

© Minister of Public Works and Government Services Canada 1995 Cat. No. A54-8/1995-3E ISBN 0-662-22934-7

#### Disclaimer:

The information contained in this publication does not indicate support or endorsement by Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada.

## CONTENTS

DIRECTORY	***	•••	•••	•••	***	•••	•••	•••	1
SHEEP BREEDS									
Barbados Blackbe	lly	•••		•••	•••		•••	•••	12
Black Welsh Moun	tain	•••	•••	0 9 9	•••	•••		•••	13
Canadian Arcott	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	14
Cheviot	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	***	16
Clun Forest	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	17
Columbia	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	18
Corriedale	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	***	•••	•••	18
Cotswold	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	20
DLS	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	21
Dorset	•••	•••	• • •	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	22
English Leicester	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	38
Finnish Landrace	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	38
Hampshire	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	40
lcelandic	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	46
Jacob	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	46
Karakul	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	***	•••	•••	48
Katahdin	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	49
Leicester	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	51
Lincoln	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	56
Merino	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	57
Navajo	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	58
Newfoundland	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	58
N. C. Cheviot	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	• • •	58
Outaouais Arcott	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	62
Oxford Down	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	• • •	•••	63
Polypay	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••		66
Rambouillet	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	67
Rideau Arcott	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	***	69
Romanov	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	71

## CONTENTS

### SHEEP BREEDS

Romney	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	74
Scottish Blackface	•••	•••	***		•••	•••	•••		77
Shetland	***	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••		77
Shropshire	***	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	78
Southdown	•••	•••	•••	•••		•••	•••	•••	79
St. Croix	***	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	84
Suffolk	***	•••	***	•••	•••	•••	•••	•••	84
Targhee	***	•••	•••	•••	***	•••	•••	•••	106
Texel	•••	•••	***	***	***	***	•••	•••	106
Tunis		•••	***	•••		•••	***	•••	107
SUMMARY OF S	SHEE	P BR	EEDS	SINC	ANA	DA	•••		108

### ABBREVIATIONS USED IN THIS PUBLICATION

CLRC Canadian Livestock Records Corporation

KHSI Katahdin Hair Sheep International

SLA Swedish Livestock Agency

ROP Record of Performance Program

A.I. Artificial insemination

UK United Kingdom

USA United States of America

NZ New Zealand

#### **DESCRIPTION OF TERMS**

Adult Sheep older than one year of age

Lamb Sheep up to one year of age

Availability Sheep for sale

Breeder flock 'Yes' indicates that the farm produces animals for

breeding

Kory & Ove Aasen Box 651

Provost, AB T0B 3S0

Phone: (403) 753-6659 Fax: (403) 753-6659

Mr. Pearson Agard Box 984, R. R. #1

Shelburne, ON L0N 1S0

Alex Thiel & Sons Farm Felseck Ch. Pépin, Rang 12, Lot 41 La Minerve, PQ J0T 1S0 Phone: (819) 274-2686

Mrs. Betty Alexandre

Box 181 Falher, AB T0H 1M0 Phone: (403) 837-8068

Mr. Thomas Anderson Anderson's Holiday Farm R. R. #2

Sussex, NB E0E 1P0 Phone: (506) 433-3786

Mr. Lloyd Ayre

Ayre Acres 1545 Regional Rd., 42, R. R. #4 Bowmanville, ON L1C 3K5 Phone: (905) 983-9491

M. Paul E. Barbeau 1245 Rang 5 Nord, R. R. #1 Lorrainville, PQ J0Z 2R0 Phone: (819) 625-2748

Ed & Linda Barnett Jessdine Farm 4365 Bruce Rd., R. R. #3 Ladysmith, BC V0R 2E0

Phone: (604) 245-3061

Lance & Marg Beath

Beath Acres R. R. #1 Brooklin, ON LOB 1C0 Phone: (905) 655-4866

Miss Margaret Bell R. R. #1

Shakespeare, ON N0B 2P0 Phone: (519) 625-8379

**Colleen Acres** Maple Meadows R. R. #4

Osgoode, ON K0A 2W0 Phone: (613) 826-2581

(613) 826-1076 Fax:

**Lisa Anne Alderson** Townsend Tp. L 12, C 4, R. R. #1 Waterford, ON NOE 1Y0 Phone: (519) 443-7756

Mr. Greg Alexander Box 3027

Airdrie, AB T4B 2B4 Phone: (403) 948-2271

Mrs. Valerie Ames

Green Lane Farm R. R. #1

Williamsford, ON N0H 2V0

Phone: (519) 794-3000 (519) 794-4437 Fax:

Mr. Brian Atkinson

Box 573 Stayner, ON LOM 1S0 Phone: (705) 428-3416

Michel & Jill Bailly

The Sheep Factory Site 24, C 1, R. R. #3 Prince George, BC V2N 2J1 Phone: (604) 967-4462

(604) 967-4232 Fax:

Mr. Jim Barclay

867 Finlayson Arm Rd. Box 8, R. R. #6 Victoria, BC V9B 5T9 Phone: (604) 478-6257

Patrick & Celene Bateman

6th Line, R. R. #1 Acton, ON L7J 2L7

P. Fournier & M. Beaudoin

Bergerie La Romance Enr. 929, Rang 1

St. Pierre Baptiste, PQ G0P 1K0

Phone: (418) 453-2918

Belmont Farms Ltd.

21151 Old Yale Rd. Langley, BC V3A 4M6

Phone: (604) 534-2367

**Dwayne Acres** Maple Meadows R. R. #4

Osgoode, ON K0A 2W0 Phone: (613) 826-2581 (613) 826-1076 Fax:

W. Kenney & P.A. Alderson Townsend Tp. L 12, C 4, R. R. #1 Waterford, ON N0E 1Y0

Phone: (519) 443-7756

Keith & Kathy Alexander

Ranchvale Farms

Box 141

Rossburn, MB R0J 1V0 Phone: (204) 859-3014

Mr. John Anderson R. R. #3

Princeton, ON N0J 1V0 Phone: (519) 458-4829

Mrs. Angela Aucoin Box 40, R. R. #3 Baddeck, NS B0E 1B0

Mrs. Norma Bannister Box 954 Mayerthorpe, AB T0E 1N0 Phone: (403) 786-4431

Mr. Roger Barden R. R. #3

Stittsville, ON K0A 3G0 Phone: (613) 838-3704

Mr. Clare Bauman

Westgate Acres Ltd.

R. R. #2

West Montrose, ON N0B 2V0

Phone: (519) 669-5358

Mr. Gregory Bell

R. R. #1 Kars, ON K0A 2E0

Phone: (613) 489-2976

Gordon & Kerry Bendixen

Box 7

Marwayne, AB T0B 2X0 Phone: (403) 847-2135

Mrs. Laura Bennett 26693-60th Ave. Aldergrove, BC V0X 1A0 Bergerie Sauvé-Laurin 570 Rang Lamontagne Calixa-Lavallée, PQ J0L 1A0 Phone: (514) 583-6240 Les Bergeries des Pins Enr. Rang 1 Ste. Angele de Merici, PQ G0J 2H0 Phone: (418) 775-8234

Mrs. Susan Bergeron R. R. #3 Almonte, ON K0A 1A0 Phone: (613) 257-4125 Mrs. Judy Bergman MacQueen Sheep Box 178 Innisfree, AB T0B 2G0 Phone: (403) 592-2167 Mme. Marielle Bernier Ferme Berarc Inc. C. P. 298 St. Lambert de Levis, PQ GOS 2W0 Phone: (418) 889-9595

Hugh & Susan Bignell Box 454 Warburg, AB TOC 2T0 Phone: (403) 848-7648 **Dr. E. Black** Stratheath Farm 1354 Regional Rd. 66 Caledonia, ON N3W 2R1 Phone: (905) 765-5705 Barb & Harvey Black Box 11 Belgrave, ON N0G 1E0 Phone: (519) 357-3339

Mrs. Jean Blier R. R. #2 Petersburg, ON N0B 2H0 Phone: (519) 634-5558 **Don & Sandra Blishen** 7521 S.W. 50th Ave. Salmon Arm, BC V0E 2T0 Phone: (604) 832-4438 **H. & C. Boettcher** R. R. #2 Brussels, ON NOG 1H0 Phone: (519) 887-9673

Bohn's Charolais Box 296 Dawson Creek, BC V1G 4G7 Phone: (604) 782-7805 **Dr. Réjean Bouchard**Dairy and Poultry Division
Agr. and Agri-Food Canada
Sir John Carling Bldg.
Ottawa, ON K1A 0C5
Phone: (613) 957-7078

Mr. G.R. Boudreau Box 1570, R. R. #1 Yarmouth, NS B5A 4A5 Phone: (902) 742-3381

Mr. Don Bowering R. R. #3 Melbourne, ON NOL 1TO Phone: (519) 289-5308 Mrs. Dorrie Bowering R. R. #3 Melbourne, ON NOL 1TO Phone: (519) 289-5308 **Ted & Alison Bowman** 98 Wagon Wheel Cr., R. R. #13 Langley, BC V3A 7N6 Phone: (604) 530-9858

**Mr. Osten Brannstrom** 26336 64th Ave., R. R. #1 Aldergrove, BC V4W 1M1 Phone: (604) 856-6073

Fred & Marlene Brettell Box 1039 Lloydminster, SK S9V 1E9 Phone: (306) 825-2640 Mrs. Inga Britt Britt Acres 3415-9 th Line Rd., R. R. # 1 Oakville, ON L6J 4Z2 Phone: (905) 828-4449

Mr. Kenneth Brock Willey Rd. South Bolton, PQ J0E 2H0 Phone: (514) 292-5789

**Mrs. Dorothy Brooks** Site 255, C-8, R. R. #2 Port Alberni, BC V9Y 7L6 Phone: (604) 723-3657 D. Goodwin & B. Brown Sheep's Kin Farm R. R. #2 Hopewell, NS B0K 1C0 Phone: (902) 396-4522

Mr. Malcolm Brown R. R. #3 Florence, ON NOP 1R0 Phone: (519) 844-2024 Mrs. Robin Brown R. R. #1 Woodville, ON K0M 2T0 Phone: (705) 374-4941

Mr. Daniel Bruce R. R. #3 Bridgetown, NS BOS 1C0 Phone: (902) 665-2119

**Mr. Carl Bryson** R. R. #8 Watford, ON N0M 2S0 Phone: (519) 828-3609 Mr. John Buchanan 4733 William Head Rd., R. R. #1 Victoria, BC V9B 5T7 Phone: (604) 478-9628

**Dr. Brian Buckrell**University of Guelph
Dept. of Pop. Medicine
Guelph, ON N1G 2W1
Phone: (519) 823-8800

Mrs. Patricia Burger R. R. #6

Pembroke, ON K8A 6W7 Phone: (613) 732-8410

Ian & Valerie Bush

R. R. #1

Consecon, ON K0K 1T0 Phone: (613) 392-2085

Mr. J.K. Campbell

R. R. #3

Metcalfe, ON K0A 2P0 Phone: (613) 821-2820

J.-G. Chouinard & N. Caron

Ferme Sayabec Ovine Enr. 92 Route 132 Ouest Sayabec, PQ G0J 3K0 Phone: (418) 536-5615

Marie & Antonin Castonguay

Ferme Mou-Vac Inc. 38 rue Principale est St. Gabriel, PQ G0K 1N0 Phone: (418) 798-8346

Gail & Jy Chiperzak

R. R. #4

Marmora, ON K0K 2M0 Phone: (613) 395-3268

Mr. Peter Conway

469 Principal St. St. Mathieu, PQ J0L 2H0 Phone: (514) 632-0956

Tracey & John Crandlemire 7521 S.W. 50th Ave. Salmon Arm, BC V0E 2T0

Phone: (604) 832-4438

G.B. & W.M. Crow

Route 22

Cambridge, ON N3C 2V4 Phone: (519) 822-8559

**Thomas & Joan Dales** 

R. R. #5

Perth, ON K7H 3C7 Phone: (613) 267-6006 Mrs. Muriel Burnett

R. R. #1

Cameron, ON K0M 1G0 Phone: (705) 887-6512

Mr. Rick Butler

Box 22

Success, SK S0N 2R0

Mrs. Anne Carmichael

Box 248

Barriere, BC V0E 1E0 Phone: (604) 672-5787

M. Pierre Caron

Ferme Masypa 500 Montée Lebeau Cowansville, PQ J2K 3G6 Phone: (514) 263-6403 Fax: (514) 263-3434

Mr. Brian Cathcart

5761 Flewellyn Rd., R. R. #1 Stittsville, ON K2S 1B6 Phone: (613) 831-3223

Mr. James G. Clark

R. R. #3 Blenheim, ON NOP 1A0 Phone: (519) 676-8878

Copeland & Evans R. R. #1

Caistor Centre, ON LOR 1E0 Phone: (905) 957-3601

**Denis & Jean Crankshaw** 

R. R. #2

Caistor Centre, ON LOR 1E0 Phone: (905) 957-3055

Marshall & Bev Cullen

R. R. #2

Olds, AB T0M 1P0 Phone: (403) 556-3656

M. Jean-Guy Deblois

Bergerie Deux Pignons Enr. 275 Rang 2

St. Martin (Beauce), PQ G0M 1B0 Phone: (418) 228-9761, 382-5106

(418) 228-3762 Fax:

Ms. Susan Burnett

Box 912

Fenelon Falls, ON K0M 1N0 Phone: (705) 887-9167

Miss Shirley Byrnes

4660 Tolmie Rd., R. R. #1 Yarrow, BC V0X 2A0 Phone: (604) 823-4783

Mr. John Carnaghan

3380 Church St., R. R. #1 Blackstock, ON L0B 1B0 Phone: (905) 986-4975

Mr. G.B. Carter

Box 711

Armstrong, BC V0E 1B0 Phone: (604) 546-3318

Mme. Gilberte Chassé

190 Route 132 Est St-André de Kam., PO GOL 2H0

Phone: (418) 493-2839

Carol Coleman-Trotter

**Butternut Farm** Box 1215

Uxbridge, ON L9P 1N5 Phone: (905) 852-5793

Diane Cougar-Goodsell

10911 248th St., R. R. #1 Maple Ridge, BC V2X 7E6 Phone: (603) 467-0280

Crawford, Miles & Degasparro

Minesing, ON L0L 1Y0 Phone: (705) 728-2352

Bill & Judy Currie

1430 Courtland Ave., R. R. #3 Victoria, BC V8X 3X1 Phone: (604) 479-7474

Mr. Lloyd Deeks 2920 Power Line Rd., R. R. # 2 Lynden, ON LOR 1TO

Phone: (519) 647-3772

Mr. Marc DeGasparro R. R. #1

Minesing, ON L0L 1Y0 Phone: (705) 728-2352

Mr. Darryl Diemert Deerbridge Farm Products R. R. #1 Chesley, ON NOG 1L0

Mrs. Elsie Doolan R. R. #1 Chesterville, ON K0C 1H0 Phone: (613) 448-2138

Mr. William Duffield Codan Suffolks R. R. #2 Wyoming, ON N0N 1T0 Phone: (519) 899-2663 Fax: (519) 899-2663

Mr. Hubert Earl Haedae Farm Box 90, R. R. #2 Addison, ON K0E 1A0 Phone: (613) 924-2052

Eskrigg Farms
Box 10, R. R. # 3
Fergus, ON N1M 2W4
Phone: (519) 843-2438
Fax: (519) 843-7601

**F. Adams & Sons** 44081 Keith Wilson Rd. Sardis, BC V2R 1B2 Phone: (604) 858-3740

Dan & Judy Fitzsimmons Rimridge Farm for Rare Breeds of Farm Animals Box 1367 Rimbey, AB TOC 2J0 Phone: (403) 843-6830

Mr. Ian Forrest R. R. #1 Brunner, ON N0K 1C0 Phone: (519) 595-4031

**Mr. Robert Fowler** R. R. #4 Quyon, PQ J0X 2V0 Phone: (819) 647-5439

M. Marc Descoteaux 1046 Rg. St. Jean Baptiste St. Joachim de Courval, PQ JOC 1H0 Phone: (514) 568-6991

Mr. Brian Digness Digness Farms Box 125 Carrot River, SK S0E 0L0 Phone: (306) 768-3190

Mr. Russell Dow Dow Downs 3262 Providence Rd., R. R. #4 Bowmanville, ON L1C 3K5 Phone: (905) 623-5817 Fax: (905) 623-3717

M. Serge Dumouchel Ch. Alarie, R. R. #1 Luskville, PQ J0X 2G0 Phone: (819) 455-2782

Mr. Thomas Eggertson R. R. #2 Lousana, AB T0M 1K0 Phone: (403) 749-2280

Mr. Keith Etsell R. R. #2 Binbrook, ON LOR 1C0 Phone: (905) 692-4250

Ferme Bergerac Enr. 249, C. P. 37, R. R. #2 Lac a la Croix, PQ G0W 1W0 Phone: (418) 349-8263

Jean & Peter Flett Flett's Ranch P.O. Box 973 Fort Qu'Appelle, SK S0G 1S0 Phone: (306) 332-5821

Katrina & John Fowler R. R. #3 Crysler, ON K0A 1R0 Phone: (613) 987-5385

T. Makowecki & K. Frank Hi Lo Hills Romanov Box 30 Musidora, AB T0B 3J0 Phone: (403) 657-2004 Mr. John Deweyert R. R. #2 Temperance Vale, NB E0H 1W0 Phone: (506) 575-8517

**Mr. Alex Dixon** R. R. #3 Cornwall, PE C0A 1H0 Phone: (902) 675-3512

Mr. William Draper Ambleside Farm West Lawrencetown Rd., R. R. #2 Porters Lake, NS B0J 2S0 Phone: (902) 435-6287

Mr. Frank Dyer R. R. #2 Thamesford, ON N0M 2M0 Phone: (519) 283-6684

Mrs. Ruth Einarson R. R. #2 Markdale, ON NOC 1H0 Phone: (519) 986-4483

Everitt Farms Site 316, Box 4, R. R. #3 Saskatoon, SK S7K 3J6 Phone: (306) 382-3798

Les Fermes G.M.P. Enr. C. P. 1613 Rimouski, PQ G5L 8M4 Phone: (418) 725-4326 Fax: (418) 725-4326

**Mr. Neil Foote** R. R. #4 Guelph, ON N1H 6J1 Phone: (519) 821-8108

Chester & Rilla Fowler R. R. #1 Airdrie, AB T4B 2A3 Phone: (403) 948-5373

Miss Heather Fraser R. R. #1 Louis Creek, BC V0E 2E0 Phone: (604) 672-9989

Fredwin Family Farm R. R. #2

Rexton, NB E0A 2L0 Phone: (506) 523-6185

Friends of the Ukranian Village Society 8820-112th St. Edmonton, AB T6G 2P8

Miss Grazia Gardi 1575 Robson Lane, R. R. #3 Cobble Hill, BC VOR 1L0 Phone: (604) 743-9562

**Rémi Gelinas** 540 St. Joseph St. Barnabe Nord, PQ G0X 2K0 Phone: (819) 264-2165

Ronald & Angela Gillespie Grey Gem Farms R. R. #1 Berkeley, ON N0H 1C0 Phone: (519) 986-4447

M. Robert Girard 107 Rg. Haut de la Riviere St. Damase, PQ J0H 1J0 Phone: (514) 797-3790

**Mrs. Sharon Goosen** Box 19 Grandora, SK S0K 1V0

Mr. Don Grant Eldonview Farms R. R. #6 Woodville, ON K0M 2T0 Phone: (705) 426-7576

**Don & Carol Jane Gray** 19445-78th Ave. Surrey, BC V4N 3G5

**Dr. E.A. Hall**Hall Ridge Suffolks
R. R. #3
Owen Sound, ON N4K 5N5
Phone: (519) 371-0683

Mrs. Gail Freeman Freeman Farms Box 168

South Mountain, ON K0E 1W0 Phone: (613) 989-2964

Mr. Rex Furgeson

Box 461 Maple Creek, SK S0N 1N0 Phone: (306) 662-2098

Mr. W.E. Gates & Son R. R. #3 Glencoe, ON N0L 1M0 Phone: (519) 287-5540, 354-4316

**Mr. Robert Gibbons** 4114 -272nd St., R. R. #1 Aldergrove, BC V0X 1A0 Phone: (604) 856-5219

**M. Claude Gingras** 1561 rue St. Cyrille Normandin, PQ G0W 2E0 Phone: (418) 274-3419

Glen G. Glaspell & Sons Glenosha Farms R. R. #5 Oshawa, ON L1H 8L7 Phone: (905) 728-6908

Mr. B.A. Gough R. R. #4 Coldwater, ON LOK 1E0 Phone: (705) 326-1585

Mrs. Mary Grant Eldonview Farms R. R. #6 Woodville, ON K0M 2T0 Phone: (705) 426-7576

Mrs. Alice Guthrie R. R. #4 Hagersville, ON N0A 1H0 Phone: (905) 768-5587

**Mr. Gordon Hall** 3380 Glenora Rd., R. R. #3 Duncan, BC V9L 2X1 Phone: (604) 746-8240 Mrs. Patricia Freeman R. R. #3 Dutton, ON NOL 1J0 Phone: (519) 762-2446

R. Poirier & R. Garant Bergerie Valentine Enr. 380 R. R. #1 Nantes, PQ G0Y 1G0 Phone: (819) 583-0247

Francois Gelinas 540 St. Joseph St. Barnabe Nord, PQ G0X 2K0 Phone: (819) 264-2165

Jeff & Antje Giles R. R. #3 Glencoe, ON NOL 1M0 Phone: (519) 287-5513

**M. Joel Girard** 1585 Ch. du Ruisseau St. Gédéon, PQ G0W 2P0 Phone: (418) 345-2321

**Doug Andrews & John Good** R. R. #1 Warsaw, ON K0L 3A0 Phone: (705) 652-6637

Mr. Barry Grant R. R. #1 Brechin, ON LOK 1B0

Robert & Shirley Graves Century Lane farm R. R. #1 Stittsville, ON K2S 1B6 Phone: (613) 831-2656

H. M. Lee & Sons Leeland Farms R. R. #2 Highgate, ON NOP 1T0 Phone: (519) 678-3782

Mr. Merv Halvorson Blackmoor Dorsets Box 114 Kuroki, SK S0A 1Y0 Phone: (306) 338-2641

Tim & Jean Hamm

Box 465

Crossfield, AB T0M 0S0 Phone: (403) 946-4432

R. J. Harvey

Daisys Acre 24233 65th Ave. Langley, BC V3A 6H4 Phone: (604) 530-3557

Mr. C. Hermansen

Yellow Point Rd., R. R. #3 Ladysmith, BC V0R 2E0 Phone: (604) 245-4226

Mrs. Carolyn Hills

Lynden Farms Box 276 Sunderland, ON LOC 1H0 Phone: (705) 357-2436

**Doreen & Louise Hofer** 

Moonlight Farms Box 105, R. R. #2 Saskatoon, SK S7K 3J5 Phone: (306) 283-4790 (306) 665-6637

Mr. Darryl Hopkins

R. R. #1

Elmwood, ON N0G 1S0 Phone: (519) 369-5460

Mr. Terence Hunter

Orillia, ON L3V 6J6

Tom & Magda Hutchinson

Indian River, ON K0L 2B0 Phone: (705) 639-1259 (705) 639-1259 Fax:

**Jack Anderson & Son** 

R. R. #1

Orillia, ON L3V 6H1 Phone: (705) 327-0421

Mr. Melville James

R. R. #3

Almonte, ON K0A 1A0 Phone: (613) 257-8539 Fax: (613) 728-3942

Mr. Mark Hannaford

Box 6187

Fort St. John, BC V1J 4H7 Phone: (604) 785-5212

Mr. Brian Hawk

Box 673 Nanton, AB T0L 1R0 Phone: (403) 646-2364

Mr. James Hewitt

R. R. #2 Sherbrooke, NS B0J 3C0 Phone: (902) 522-2365

Karl & Ellen Himmer

Box 151 La Broquerie, MB R0A 0W0 Phone: (204) 424-5634

Mr. Dennis Hollyoake

Den-Shirl-Dean Farms Box 52 Ochre River, MB R0L 1K0 Phone: (204) 638-7426

Mr. LeRoy Houston

R. R. #3 Clifford, ON N0G 1M0 Phone: (519) 338-2179

**Huron Grove Farm** 

R. R. #5 Forest, ON NON 1J0

Mr. Angus Inksetter

R. R. #1 Elmwood, ON N0G 1S0 Phone: (519) 364-3331

Mrs. Jenny Jackson Mountain Side Southdowns Site 245, C4, R. R. #2 Courtenay, BC V9N 5M9 Phone: (604) 338-8019

Mr. Edward Janzen

Box 188 Rosemary, AB T0J 2W0 Phone: (403) 378-4879

**G. & A. Harper** R. R. #1

Cawston, BC V0X 1C0 Phone: (604)499-5645

Mrs. Cathy Henderson Fairwinds Farm

Godolphin Rd., R. R. #4 Warkworth, ON K0K 3K0 Phone: (705) 924-2930

(705) 653-5483 Fax:

Mr. Allan Hill 71 Thomas St.

Alton, ON LON 1A0 Phone: (519) 941-2102

Florence Ross & Arnold Hintermann

R. R. #2

Kemptville, ON K0G 1J0 Phone: (613) 989-2497

Mr. Dan Hopkins

R. R. #1 Hailey Bury, ON P0J 1K0 Phone: (705) 647-8705

Mr. Gerald Hunter

R. R. #4

Smiths Falls, ON K7A 4S5 Phone: (613) 283-7565

Mrs. Debbie Hutchings

Lamb Trax Sheep R. R. #2 Westport, ON K0G 1X0

Phone: (613) 273-5325

J. Russel Simpson & Son

Glencoe, ON NOL 1M0 Phone: (519) 287-3622

M. Real Jacques

170 Ch. Jacques Compton, PQ J0B 1L0 Phone: (819) 835-5763

Mr. William Jeffray R. R. #1

Airdrie, AB T4B 2A3 Phone: (403) 948-5773

Ms. Cheryl Johnstone Green Arpents Farm Box 370 Ormstown, PQ J0S 1K0

Phone: (514) 829-3102

Joywind Farm Rare Breeds Cons.

General Delivery Marmora, ON K0K 2M0 Phone: (613) 472-6160 (613) 472-5565 Fax:

Mr. Oliver Kingdon R. R. #2

Omemee, ON K0L 2W0 Phone: (705) 799-5187

M. Robert Laberge

R. R. #1 Danville, PQ J0A 1A0 Phone: (819) 839-3350

Cory & Monica Lambert Box 99

Winfield, AB T0C 2X0 Phone: (403) 682-3742

Mrs. Margit Lassen R. R. #2

Malagash, NS B0K 1E0 Phone: (902) 257-2669

Mr. Peter Lawson Thirsty Fox Farm R. R. #1

Okotoks, AB T0L 1T0 Phone: (403) 938-7581

Mr. Otto Lehmann Box 968

Rosthern, SK S0K 3R0 Phone: (306) 232-4773

Locham Brae Farm

Box 48 Dorchester, NB E0A 1M0 Phone: (506) 379-2534

Mr. Patric Lyster

Coyote Acres Box 452 Vilna, AB TOA 3L0 Phone: (403) 636-2894 **Mr. Neil Joiner** 7195 Chilliwack River Rd. Sardis, BC V2R 1B1

Phone: (604) 858-9596

Mrs. Sherry Jurke

Box 677 Maidstone, SK S0M 1M0 Phone: (306) 893-2883

Mr. John Kirk

Innisfree, AB T0B 2G0 Phone: (403) 657-2048

**Labrecque et Pepin** 8569 Boul. St. Jacques Neufchatel, PQ G2C 1L5 Phone: (418) 248-6192

Mr. Keith Lamont

Thistlestone Farm R. R. #2 Acton, ON L7I 2L8 Phone: (519) 853-1975

M. Gerard Laurens

Ferme Laurens 649, 5e Rang Ste-Clothilde de Horton, PQ J0A 1H0 Phone: (604) 337-8488 Phone: (819) 336-3681

**LBU Sheep Farm** 5300-34B Ave., R. R. #1 Delta, BC V4K 3N2 Phone: (604) 946-1876

**Mme. Marte Lévèsques** Bergerie Fleuriault Enr.

154 rue Principale St. Gabriel, PQ G0K 1M0 Phone: (418) 798-4315

Mr. Anthony Locke

R. R. #1 Athens, ON K0E 1B0 Phone: (613) 928-2246

Mr. Kenneth MacKenzie

Box 3 Christmas Island, NS B0A 1C0 Mr. Clarence Jones Clarence Jones Ranch

Box 42 De Winton, AB TOL 0X0

Phone: (403) 938-7896

Mr. lan Kerr

13176 Edge St., R. R. #2 Maple Ridge, BC V2X 7E7 Phone: (604) 463-8423

Mrs. Lois Laberge 150 Laberge Rd., R. R. #1 Danville, PQ J0A 1A0 Phone: (819) 839-3350

M. Joseph Lagarde

Ch. Lett's, R. R. #2 Ile-du-Grand-Calumet, PQ J0X 1J0 Phone: (819) 648-2656

Ms. Dana Landry Box 635

100 Mile House, BC V0K 2E0 Phone: (604) 395-4785

Stephen & Annajane Lawrie 8428 Island Hwy. Black Creek, BC V9J 1H5

M. Robert Leclair

Leclair Dorsets 808 Rang 9 St. Rémi de Tingwick, PQ J0A 1K0 Phone: (819) 359-2848

Leeann Lewis

L Bar L Ranch 46520 Extrom Rd., R. R. #2 Sardis, BC V2R 1B1 Phone: (604) 858-7003

Mr. Fred Lowden

R. R. #1

Smithville, ON LOR 2A0 Phone: (905) 957-2049

Mrs. Fran Macpherson

Bent Acres Farm Site 414, C 7, R. R. #4 Courtenay, BC V9N 7J3 Phone: (604) 338-7267

(604) 338-2256 Fax:

Mr. William Mactaggart

Box 668

Guelph, ON N1H 6L3 Phone: (519) 822-8830

Mrs. Louise Marée R. R. #1

Owen Sound, ON N4K 5N3 Phone: (519) 792-2098

Philip & Marilyn Martin

Martinshire Farm R. R. #4

Marmora, ON K0K 2M0 Phone: (613) 395-3246

Mr. A.T. Matejka Box 1, Site 11, R. R. #3 Ponoka, AB T4J 1R3

Phone: (403) 783-2167

**Dennis & Louise McBurney** 

Jansen, SK S0K 2B0 Phone: (306) 364-4204

Mrs. Ann McClure R. R. #1

Delta, ON K0E 1G0 Phone: (613) 928-2840

Mr. Allan McDougall Stonehill Sheep

R. R. #4

Chatsworth, ON N0H 1G0 Phone: (519) 794-2694

Mr. Don McKay R. R. #2

Puslinch, ON N0B 2J0 Phone: (519) 822-2984

Mr. Howard Mclean

R. R. #1

Melbourne, ON N0L 1T0 Phone: (519) 289-5810

Michiel & Grace Messing Box 1060B, R. R. #1

Sylvan Lake, AB T0M 1Z0 Phone: (403) 886-2808, 350-7173

(403) 886-2809 Fax:

**Brad & Victoria Manson** 

Box 175

Farmington, BC V0C 1N0 Phone: (604) 843-7185

Mr. Eckehart Marenholtz

Chickadee Farm Flatbush, AB TOG 0Z0 Phone: (403) 681-2430

Mr. David Mastine

63 Rte. 243, R. R. #4 St. Félix de Kingsey, PQ J0B 2T0 Phone: (819) 848-2538

Mr. W.G. Mathewson

R. R. #6

Truro, NS B2N 5B4 Phone: (902) 895-4708

Pete & Joyce McCart Windhover Farm

Box 78

Spruce View, AB T0M 1V0 Phone: (403) 728-3035 Fax: (403) 728-3523

Jean & Delbert McComb

Glenalcomb Farm

R. R. #5

Belleville, ON K8N 4Z5 Phone: (613) 962-8163

Mr. Dennis McFadden

R. R. #3

Newmarket, ON L3Y 4W1 Phone: (905) 895-2875

Mr. Brian McKee

Brookdale, MB R0K 0G0 Phone: (204) 354-2258

Mr. Sandy McPhedran

R. R. #4

Rockwood, ON N0B 2K0 Phone: (519) 856-9506

Doug & Dianne Miller R. R. #1

Elmwood, ON N0G 1S0

Marchonique Ranch Box 184D, R. R. #5 Winnipeg, MB R2C 2Z2 Phone: (204) 222-8188

Mr. Wray Marshall R. R. #1

Caistor Centre, ON LOR 1E0

Phone: (905) 692-4207

Mr. Robert Mastine

Woodstock Farm RG 3, No. 351, R. R. #1

St. Felix de Kingsey, PQ J0B 2T0 Phone: (819) 848-2147

(819) 848-2147 Fax:

Mr. James May R. R. #4

Glencoe, ON NOL 1M0 Phone: (519) 287-5336

M. Phillipe McCarthy 402 Ch. du Roy, R. R. #1 St. Augustin, PQ G3A 1W8

Phone: (418) 878-2492

Mrs. Linda McDonald

Box 39, R. R. #1

North Lancaster, ON K0C 1Z0

Phone: (613) 347-1202

Mr. Larry McGillivray 17929 Fraser Hwy.

Surrey, BC V3S 8E7

Phone: (604) 576-1939

Mr. George McLaughlin

Beaverton, ON LOK 1A0 Phone: (705) 426-7027

Mrs. Jackie Medd Marigold Lane Farm R. R. #1

Cameron, ON K0M 1G0

Phone: (705) 887-5168

Mme. Colette Millier Ferme Paninou Enr.

151 Rg. 2 Ouest Val Brillant, PQ G0J 3L0 Phone: (418) 742-3420

**M. Theo Montminy** 1170 Route 269 St. Gilles, PQ GOS 2P0 Phone: (418) 888-5671

John & Patricia Morris Druids Green 2186-172nd St. South Surrey, BC V4B 5E7 Phone: (604) 536-9556

George, Heather & Terry Myers R. R. #1 Kensington, PE C0B 1M0 Phone: (902) 836-5691

Harvey & Eleanor Oatway R. R. #1 Grande Prairie, AB T8V 2Z8 Phone: (403) 532-6772

**Dr. W.M. Palmer** University of Manitoba Dept. of Animal Science Winnipeg, MB R3T 2N2 Phone: (204) 474-9470

Mrs. Sandra Peake R. R. #3 Princeton, ON N0J 1V0 Phone: (519) 449-5006

**Mr. Douglas Pletsch** R. R. #5 Guelph, ON N1H 6J2 Phone: (519) 824-5478

Charles & Grace Procter R. R. #5 Brussels, ON N0G 1H0 Phone: (519) 887-9266

David & Silk Questo Fairwind Farm 1071 Beaver Pt. Rd. Salt Spring Island, BC V8K 1X3 Phone: (604) 653-4410

**Reichert Suffolks** 6858 238 St. Langley, BC V3A 6H4 Phone: (604) 534-7138 Mrs. Diane Moore R. R. #2 Stewiacke, NS B0N 2J0 Phone: (902) 639-2423

Mr. Douglas Morrison 336 Morrison Rd., R. R. #1 Kingsbury, PQ J0B 1X0 Phone: (819) 826-2755

Orla & Elsa Nielsen R. R. #1 Markerville, AB T0M 1A0 Phone: (403) 728-3532

Olds College Box 21 Olds, AB T0M 1P0 Phone: (403) 556-8265

Mr. Wendell Palmer 6749 Homestead Cres. Niagara Falls, ON L2G 2H8 Phone: (905) 358-6146

David & Nancy Pease Glen Osprey Farm R. R. #6 Shelburne, ON LON 1S9 Phone: (519) 925-6412 Fax: (519) 925-1297

Mr. Victor Pobran R. R. #1 Sydenham, ON K0H 2T0 Phone: (613) 376-3405

**Dr. J.G. Proulx**Agr. and Agri-Food Canada
La Pocatière Sheep Research Farm
1642 rue de la Ferme
La Pocatiere, PQ G0R 1Z0

Rathwell Appledore Farm R. R. #1 Wiarton, ON NON 2T0 Phone: (519) 534-0228

Mr. Allan Reid 1778 Bensfort Rd., R. R. #6 Peterborough, ON K9J 6X7 Phone: (705) 745-0255 **Mr. Geoffrey Moore** Box 9, R. R. #2 Scotsburn, NS B0K 1R0 Phone: (902) 485-8207

Mrs. Janice Moseley 3474 Kingburne Rd., R. R. #1 Cobble Hill, BC V0R 1L0 Phone: (604) 743-9681

**Mr. Lawrence Nodwell** R. R. #1 Norton, NB E0G 2N0 Phone: (506) 485-2384

Mrs. Heather Olney 13668 Long Lake Rd. Ladysmith, BC V0R 2E0 Phone: (604) 245-7257

M. George Parent Ferme La Bergere Enr. C. P. 145, St. Gabriel de Rimouski, PQ G0K 1M0 Phone: (418) 798-8272 Fax: (418) 798-4960

Mme. Solange Pettigrew Ferme Pimona Enr. 19 rue Principale St. Gilbert, PQ G0A 3T0 Phone: (418) 268-8406

**Mr. John Poulos** P.O. Box 212, R. R. #1 Odessa, ON K0H 2H0 Phone: (613) 386-3134

**Puck's Farm** R. R. #3 Schomberg, ON LOG 1T0 Phone: (905) 939-7036

Mr. Alan Regan Stanley Park Children's Zoo 2099 Beach Ave. Vancouver, BC V6G 1Z4 Phone: (604) 681-8729

Mr. Walter Renwick Renwick Polled Dorsets R. R. #1 Clifford, ON NOG 1M0 Phone: (519) 367-2504

Mr. Wayne Richards Vernon, PE C0A 2E0 Phone: (902) 368-5603 Fax: (902) 368-5661

Mr. John Roney Ballynoe Stock Farm R. R. #2 Thorndale, ON N0M 2P0 Phone: (519) 461-0439

Olaf & Monika Rumke Box 92 Lancaster, ON K0C 1N0 Phone: (613) 347-3235

Kenneth & Keith Salmon 1770 Baldy Mountain Rd., R. R. #1 Shawnigan Lake, BC VOR 2W0 Phone: (604) 743-1925

Miss Megan Scammell Northcote Farm R. R. #2 Ingleside, ON K0C 1M0 Phone: (613) 537-8537, 938-5964(w) Fax: (613) 938-5964

Mrs. Elaine Sharp Spring Brae Farm R. R. #1 Enderby, BC V0E 1V0 Phone: (604) 838-9381

Ted & Rebecca Skinner Cedar Creek Farm 2890 C 7, R. R. #5 Bowmanville, ON L1C 3K6 Phone: (905) 263-2102

Mr. Kenneth Smith Ken-Lin Stock Farm R. R. #8-36-18 Lethbridge, AB T1J 4P4 Phone: (403) 327-9369

Mrs. Marian Stephen R. R. #7 Calgary, AB T2P 2G7 Phone: (403) 936-5463

Mr. Bruce Stieb Box 267 Leask, SK S0J 1M0 Phone: (306) 466-4561 Riverview Park & Zoo 1230 Water St. N., Box 4125 Peterborough, ON K9J 6Z5 Phone: (705) 748-9300

**Mr. Angus Rouse** R. R. #2 Debert, NS B0M 1G0 Phone: (902) 662-2614

Russwood Claredale Farms Site 4, Box 8, R. R. #1 Roaches Line, NF A0A 1W0 Phone: (709) 528-4729

Sassi-Sandy Acres Sheep Stud Inc. Box 258 Pilot Butte, SK S0G 3Z0

Rick & Sharon Schaefer Box 568 Ituna, SK SOA 1N0 Phone: (306) 675-4410

Dr. J.N.B. Shrestha Agr. & Agri-Food Canada, CFAR Bldg. 55, C.E.F. Ottawa, ON K1A 0C6 Phone: (613) 993-6002 Fax: (613) 943-2352

Jo & David Sleigh Bramblewood Farm 27482-104th Ave., R. R. #4 Whonnock, BC V2X 8X8 Phone: (604) 462-9465

**Ms. Sandra Smyth** R. R. #2 Mattawa, ON P0H 1V0 Phone: (705) 744-2230

Mr. W.W. Stephen R. R. #7 Calgary, AB T2P 2G7 Phone: (403) 936-5463

Mr. Robert Still Box 16 Isabella, MB R0M 0Y0 Phone: (204) 568-4574 **Ro-onna Acres** R. R. #4 North Augusta, ON K0G 1R0 Phone: (613) 924-9349

Laurence & Kristi Roy Box 1146 Vegreville, AB T9C 1S3 Phone: (403) 592-2183

Mr. Ian Sall Box 31 Montney, BC V0C 1Y0 Phone: (604) 787-7494

Mr. Paul Saunders R. R. #2 Berwick, NS B0P 1E0 Phone: (902) 538-9548

Mrs. Jacqueline Schram Quiggle & Schram Box 313 Cartwright, MB R0K 0L0 Phone: (204) 529-2309

**Mr. Bruce Sinclair** Goshen, NS B0H 1M0 Phone: (902) 783-2093

Lois & Harley Smith Moscow, R. R. #3 Yarker, ON K0K 3N0 Phone: (613) 358-2974

Diana McLean & Wilf Stefan Toubabou Farm R. R. #2 Carleton Place, ON K7C 3P2 Phone: (613) 253-0194

Mrs. K.A. Stewart R. R. #1 Guelph, ON N1H 6H7

Mr. William Stonehouse Maplelure Farms R. R. #1 Owen Sound, ON N4K 5N3 Phone: (519) 371-1546

Mr. Walter Strand R. R. #8-10-5 Lethbridge, AB T1J 4P4

Phone: (403) 327-9306

M. Yvan Therrien 152 Rang 5 St. Francois-Xavier, PQ J0B 2V0 Phone: (819) 845-4829

Mr. & Mrs. Mark Tolton Brantwood Farms R. R. #3 Walkerton, ON NOG 2V0 Phone: (519) 881-3547

M. Robert Tremblay 451 Rg. Bois Franc Est St. Apollinaire, PQ GOS 2E0 Phone: (418) 881-2337 Fax: (418) 728-3977

Mr. Jan Tuytel The 100 Aker Wood 23336-52nd Ave., R. R. #13 Langley, BC V3A 7N6 Phone: (604) 530-0148

Joan vanSligtenhorst R. R. #1 Zurich, ON N0M 2T0 Phone: (519) 262-6208

Mr. Kenneth Webster Box 132 Elbow, SK S0H 1J0 Phone: (306) 854-4906

John & Edith Williams R. R. #3 Ponoka, AB T4J 1R3 Phone: (403) 784-3511

B. McLean & T. Wilson Lambsquarters R. R. #2 Holstein, ON NOG 2A0 Phone: (519) 323-2725

**Mr. Al Young** R. R. #1 Blyth, ON N0M 1H0 Phone: (519) 523-9201 Mrs. Edith Stutzinger R. R. #5 Colborne, ON K0K 1S0 Phone: (905) 355-3133

**David & Shirley Thomson** 3721 Telegraph Rd., R. R. #2 Cobble Hill, BC V0R 1L0 Phone: (604) 743-5263

Maria Trauttmansdorff Dunlea Farms Ltd. 400 Field Rd. Jerseyville, ON LOR 1R0 Phone: (519) 647-2027

Mr. Charles Tummonds Lazy Hills Holsteins & Suffolks R. R. #1 Arva, ON NOM 1C0 Phone: (519) 666-1487

Bonnie Tweedie Box 463 Delisle, SK SOL 0P0 Phone: (306) 493-2716

M. Michel Viens Ferme Beausoleil Enr. 210 Rang 4 est St. Joseph de Kam., PQ G0L 3P0 Phone: (418) 493-2310

Brigitte & Waldemar Weihing R. R. #2 Omemee, ON K0L 2W0 Phone: (705) 799-7104

Mr. Edward Williams Cambie-Solsqua Rd., R. R. #1 Sicamous, BC V0E 2V0 Phone: (604) 836-4538

D. Wytinck CONEYGEERS 2243 Fern Rd. Nanaimo, BC V9S 2W8 Phone: (604) 758-5779 Fax: (604) 758-5779

Lyle & Fione Young Cowichan Bay Farm 1560 Cowichan Bay Rd., R. R. #1 Cowichan Bay, BC VOR 1N0 Phone: (604) 746-7884 Fax: (604) 743-2911 Linda Swaine Rose Haven Farm R. R. #2 Durham, ON NOG 1R0 Phone: (519) 369-5645 Fax: (519) 369-5645

**T.A. & S.P. Thorne** Briar Patch 8667 208th St., R. R. #5 Langley, BC V3A 4P8 Phone: (604) 888-3569

Noella & Jim Tremblay Maple Haven Farms Box 134 Bjorkdale, SK S0E 0E0 Phone: (306) 886-4326

Mrs. Carolyn Turner Frogmorton Farm R. R. #1 Elginburg, ON K0H 1M0 Phone: (613) 542-5752

**Mr. Dana Vader** R. R. #1 Cherry Valley, ON K0K 1P0 Phone: (613) 476-4781

**W. & N. Weatherstone** R. R. #2 Croton, ON N0P 1K0 Phone: (519) 692-5152

Mr. George Wiebe Box 993 Morden, MB R0G 1J0 Phone: (204) 822-5165

**Mr. J.C. Wilson**Dolway Farm
R. R. #1
Hyde Park, ON N0M 1Z0
Phone: (519) 472-9939, 474-1462

**Yeoman Farm** R. R. #1 Parham, ON K0H 2K0 Phone: (613) 375-6308

**Breed: Barbados Blackbelly** 

No. of males: Adult: 2

Lamb: 26

No. of females: Adult: 29

Lamb: 14

Availability: Yes

Notes: No registry in Canada.

Contact: Mr. Neil Foote

Source of rams: USA

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, year-round lambing.

**Breed: Barbados Blackbelly** 

No. of males: Adult: 1

Lamb: 1

No. of females: Adult: 6

Availability: No

Notes: No registry in Canada; ram and most

of its offspring are polled.

Contact: Mrs. Patricia Freeman

Source of rams: Own

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 8 mo.
Flock size: Increasing
Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct, hair sheep.

**Breed: Barbados Blackbelly** 

No. of males: Adult: 3

Lamb: 6

No. of females: Adult: 14

Availability: Yes

Notes: No registry in Canada; Meat is low in fat and cholesterol and has a mild flavour. Coarse hair contains lanolin. A dense fine, very short wool undercoat in winter which is spontaneously shed in spring.

**Contact: Mrs. Cathy Henderson** 

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 6 mo.
Flock size: Increasing
Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct, coarse hair.

**Breed: Barbados Blackbelly** 

No. of males: Adult: 4 No. of females: Adult: 36

Availability: Yes

Notes: No registry in Canada.

Contact: Karl & Ellen Himmer

· Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 7 mo.

Flock size: Decreasing

Usage: Meat, breeding

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness,

maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Barbados Blackbelly** 

No. of males: Adult: 3

Lamb: 1

No. of females: Adult: 16

Lamb: 1

Availability: Yes

Notes: No registry in Canada.

Contact: Mr. Dan Hopkins

Source of rams: Own Breeder flock: Yes

Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, year-round lambing,

maternal ability.

**Breed: Barbados Blackbelly** 

No. of males: Lamb: No. of females: Adult: 6

Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Notes: Prime ewes have a lambing interval of 6-8 mo. Breeding hornlessness back into sheep. Rams currently 90% horn free. Ewes hornless. Hornless Barbados Blackbellies grow larger. Twins and triplets are common and quads occur occasionally.

**Breed: Barbados Blackbelly** 

No. of females: Adult: Notes: No registry in Canada. Contact: Mrs. Sandra Peake

Own, other breeders Source of rams:

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness,

maternal ability, flocking instinct.

Contact: Mr. Alan Regan

Source of rams:

Housing: Conventional Meat, milk, show Usage:

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

maternal ability.

**Breed: Barbados Blackbelly** 

No. of males: Adult: Lamb: 3

No. of females: Adult: 4 8 Lamb:

Yes Availability:

Contact: Mr. Bruce Stieb

Source of rams: USA

Conventional Housing:

Lambing interval: 6 mo.

Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Low maintenance, year-round lambing,

hardiness, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Black Welsh Mountain** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: 2 No. of females: Adult: 4

Lamb:

Availability: Yes Contact: Ian & Valerie Bush

Source of rams: Other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Decreasing Usage: Breeding

Merits: Rarity.

**Breed: Black Welsh Mountain** 

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: 4 No. of females: Adult: 5

Lamb:

8

Availability: No

Notes: Not registered.

**Contact: Joywind Farm Rare Breeds Conservancy** 

Source of rams: Own Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness, maternal ability.

**Breed: Black Welsh Mountain** 

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

15 No. of females: Adult: 5

Lamb:

Availability: Yes Contact: Philip & Marilyn Martin

Source of rams: Housing:

Other breeders Semi-intensive

Flock size:

Usage:

Increasing

Show, maintain rare breed

**Breed: Canadian Arcott** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 6

Lamb:

No Availability: Notes: 8 registered. Contact: Mr. Roger Barden

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Increasing Flock size:

Usage: Meat, 4-H projects Merits: Low maintenance, hardinéss.

**Breed: Canadian Arcott** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

No. of males: Adult:

13 Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 114

> Lamb: 40

Availability: Yes

Notes: 83 registered; Terminal sire breed kept for crossbreeding. Source of ram from other

breeders in Ontario.

Contact: Pierre Fournier & Mona Beaudoin

Source of rams:

Own, other breeders, ROP

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 8 mo.

Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, breeding

Merits: Low maintenance, disease resistance, hardiness,

flocking instinct.

**Breed: Canadian Arcott** 

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: 27

No. of females: Adult: 80

Lamb: 115

Availability: Yes Contact: Gordon & Kerry Bendixen

Source of rams:

Own, other breeders

Breeder flock:

Yes Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 8 mo.

Flock size:

Increasing

Usage:

Meat, wool

Merits: Rapid growth rate, lean carcass, conformation, low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness, maternal

ability, flocking instinct, wool quality.

**Breed: Canadian Arcott** 

No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult:

Availability: No

Contact: Dr. Réjean Bouchard

Source of rams:

Other breeders

Housing: Flock size: Conventional Same

Usage:

Show

**Breed: Canadian Arcott** 

No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 8

Lamb: 2

Availability: Yes Contact: Mr. Russell Dow

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat Merits: Superior productivity.

**Breed: Canadian Arcott** 

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

Availability: No Contact: Philip & Marilyn Martin

Source of rams: Other breeders, ROP

Usage: Meat, breeding

**Breed: Canadian Arcott** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Lamb: Availability:

Notes: 5 registered.

Contact: Laurence & Kristi Roy

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional Flock size: Increasing Breeding Usage:

Merits: Hardiness.

**Breed: Canadian Arcott** 

Registered: No. of males: Adult: 2 No. of females: Adult:

3 Lamb:

Availability: Yes Notes: 6 registered.

Contact: Mrs. Jacqueline Schram

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, breeding

Merits: Year-round lambing, maternal ability, flocking

instinct.

**Breed: Canadian Arcott** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

No. of males: Adult: 17

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 104

Availability: Notes: 123 registered. Contact: Dr. J.N.B. Shrestha

Source of rams: Own Breeder flock: Yes Housing: Intensive Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Decreasing

Usage: Research

Merits: Not as excitable as other breeds.

- 15 -

**Breed: Cheviot** 

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 11

Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Notes: To retain breed activity in Canada.

Contact: Mr. G.B. Carter

Own, other breeders Source of rams:

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Increasing Flock size:

Usage: Meat, wool, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

hardiness, maternal ability.

**Breed: Cheviot** 

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

1

No. of females: Adult: 26 30 Lamb:

Availability: Yes **Contact: Copeland & Evans** 

Source of rams:  $\Omega$ wn Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Decreasing

Usage: Show

**Breed: Cheviot** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

No. of females: Adult:

Notes: 1 registered.

**Contact: Miss Grazia Gardi** 

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat, milk

Merits: Low maintenance, disease resistance, hardiness,

maternal ability.

**Breed: Cheviot** 

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Adult: 30

No. of females: Adult:

Lamb:

No Availability: Notes: 2 registered. Contact: Mr. Kenneth MacKenzie

Source of rams: Other breeders, ROP

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, disease resistance, hardiness,

maternal ability, flocking instinct, wool quality.

**Breed: Cheviot** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

Adult: No. of males:

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 14

Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Notes: 21 registered.

Contact: Mr. David Mastine

Source of rams: USA Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Increasing Flock size:

Meat, wool, show

Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness, maternal ability.

**Breed: Cheviot** 

No. of males: Lamb: No. of females: Adult:

Lamb: 2 No

Availability:

Contact: Mrs. Janice Moseley

Own, other breeders Source of rams:

Semi-intensive Housing:

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, hardiness, maternal ability.

**Breed: Clun Forest** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 18

Lamb:

Availability: Yes Notes: 21 registered. Contact: Mrs. Norma Bannister

Source of rams: Other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Conventional Housing:

Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Decreasing Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

hardiness, maternal ability, wool quality.

**Breed: Clun Forest** 

Registered: No. of males: Adult:

No. of females: Adult:

Contact: G. & A. Harper

Source of rams: Own, USA Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Decreasing Flock size:

Usage: Meat, wool, lawn mowers Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, hardiness, maternal ability, wool

quality.

**Breed: Clun Forest** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: 1

Lamb: No. of females: Adult: 2

Lamb:

Availability: No Contact: Ms. Dana Landry

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Hardiness.

**Breed: Clun Forest** 

No. of females: Lamb: Availability: No

Contact: Mrs. Janice Moseley

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Semi-intensive Increasing Flock size:

Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness, maternal ability,

wool quality.

**Breed: Clun Forest** 

Contact: Mr. Angus Rouse

Own, UK Registered: Source of rams: **CLRC** Yes No. of males: Breeder flock: Adult: 20

Conventional Housing: Lamb: Lambing interval: 12 mo.

No. of females: Adult: 64 Flock size: Same 39 Lamb:

Meat, breeding Usage: Availability: Yes Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

disease resistance, hardiness, maternal ability.

Contact: Mr. Rex Furgeson

**Contact: Mr. Clarence Jones** 

**Breed: Columbia** 

Own, other breeders, USA Source of rams: **CLRC** 

Registered: Housing: Adult: 32 Range No. of males:

22 Lambing interval: 12 mo. Lamb: 270 Flock size: Same No. of females: Adult:

Usage: Meat, wool, milk Lamb: 24

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, Availability: Yes hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct, wool

quality.

**Breed: Columbia** 

Source of rams: Own, other breeders Registered: **CLRC** 

Housing: Adult: Conventional No. of males: 15 Lambing interval: 12 mo. Lamb: 15

No. of females: Adult: Flock size: 85 Increasing Usage: Lamb: 30 Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, Availability: Yes Notes: Sheep also registered with Columbia hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct, wool

Sheep Breeders of America. quality.

**Breed: Columbia Contact: Reichert Suffolks** 

Registered: **CLRC** Breeder flock: Yes Housing: No. of females: Adult: 2 Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Availability: Increasing Notes: 2 registered. Flock size:

Meat, wool, show Merits: Maternal ability, wool quality.

**Breed: Corriedale** Contact: Mrs. Angela Aucoin

Source of rams: No. of males: Adult: Own, other breeders

Housing: Conventional No. of females: Adult: 10

Availability: Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, wool, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

maternal ability, wool quality.

**Breed: Corriedale** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: 2

Lamb: 34

No. of females: Adult: 34

Lamb: 39

Availability: Yes

Notes: 25 registered; 33 lambs are produced

each year.

**Breed: Corriedale** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: 1

Lamb: 5
No. of females: Adult: 6
Lamb: 12

Availability: Yes

Contact: Mrs. Carol Coleman-Trotter

Source of rams: Ontario, NZ, USA

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 8-12 mo. Same

Usage: Meat, wool, show, breeding Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, long breeding season, hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct, wool quality,

prolificacy.

**Contact: Mrs. Alice Guthrie** 

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Increasing
Usage: Meat, wool, show

Merits: Superior productivity, maternal ability, flocking

instinct, wool quality.

**Breed**: Corriedale

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 3
No. of females: Adult: 87
Lamb: 11

Availability: Yes
Notes: 43 registered.

Contact: Jack Anderson & Son

Source of rams: Own Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Same
Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Dual purpose nature, meat/carcass quality.

**Breed: Corriedale** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: 1 Lamb: 6

Lamb: 6
No. of females: Adult: 9
Lamb: 6

Availability: Yes Notes: 10 registered.

Contact: Mr. Dennis McFadden

Source of rams: Other breeders Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Same
Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, disease resistance, hardiness,

maternal ability, flocking instinct, wool quality.

**Breed: Corriedale** 

No. of males: Adult: 3 No. of females: Adult: 41

Availability: Yes

Contact: Mr. George McLaughlin

Source of rams: Own, other breeders, ROP, USA

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 8 mo.
Flock size: Same
Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, disease resistance, hardiness,

maternal ability, flocking instinct, wool quality.

**Breed: Corriedale** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 8

Lamb: 3 Contact: Mrs. Diane Moore

Own Source of rams:

Conventional Housing:

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Wool Usage:

Merits: Maternal ability, wool quality.

**Breed: Corriedale** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Lamb: 2 17 No. of females: Adult:

Lamb:

Availability: No Notes: 14 registered. **Contact: Mrs. Elaine Sharp** 

Source of rams: Own

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Same Flock size:

Meat, wool, sheepskins, show Usage: Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness, maternal ability,

flocking instinct, wool quality.

**Breed: Corriedale** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 51 Availability: No

Notes: 6 registered.

Contact: M. Yvan Therrien

Source of rams: Own Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Same Flock size: Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, disease resistance, hardiness,

maternal ability, wool quality.

**Breed: Cotswold** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Adult: Lamb: No. of females: Adult: Lamb:

Availability: Yes Contact: Mr. John Anderson

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, wool, breeding

Merits: Rare breed.

**Breed: Cotswold** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: Lamb:

Availability: Yes Notes: 31 registered. Contact: Gail & Jy Chiperzak

Source of rams: Own, other breeders, USA

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, wool Merits: Wool quality.

**Breed: Cotswold** 

No. of males: Adult:

No. of females: Adult:

Contact: Dan & Judy Fitzsimmons

Conventional Housing:

**Breed: Cotswold** 

Registered: **CLRC** Adult: No. of males:

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 20 Lamb:

Availability: Yes Notes: 35 registered. Contact: Tom & Magda Hutchinson

Own, other breeders, USA Source of rams:

Breeder flock: Yes Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, wool, maintain rare breed Merits: Maternal ability, carcass quality, fleece.

**Breed: Cotswold** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Lamb: No. of females: Lamb: 2

No Availability:

Contact: Joywind Farm Rare Breeds Conservancy

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Increasing Flock size: Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Wool quality.

**Breed: Cotswold** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Lamb: No. of females: Adult: 1

Lamb: Availability:

Notes: 4 registered.

Contact: Mr. Alan Regan

Source of rams: Other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, wool, show

Merits: Hardiness, maternal ability, wool quality.

Breed: DLS

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 34 Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Notes: 58 registered.

Contact: Dr. J.G. Proulx

Source of rams: Own, ROP Breeder flock: Yes Housing: **Intensive** Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, research

Merits: Low maintenance, year-round lambing,

hardiness, maternal ability.

**Breed: Dorset** 

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 13

Lamb:

Availability: Yes **Contact: Colleen Acres** 

Own, other breeders, ROP Source of rams:

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 10-12 mo. Flock size: Same

Meat, breeding Usage:

Merits: Growth rate, out of season lambing.

**Breed: Dorset** 

No. of males: Adult:

40 No. of females: Adult:

Contact: W. Kenney & P.A. Alderson

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional Increasing Flock size: Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

year-round lambing.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult:

No. of females: Adult: 33 Lamb:

Availability: Yes Contact: Mrs. Valerie Ames

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Year-round lambing, hardiness, maternal

ability.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

No. of males: Adult: Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 13

Lamb:

Availability: No

Notes: Polled Dorset.

Contact: Michel & Jill Bailly

Source of rams: Other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 8 mo.

Increasing Flock size: Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Superior productivity, year-round lambing,

hardiness, maternal ability, wool quality.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 20

Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Notes: 24 registered.

Contact: Belmont Farms Ltd.

Source of rams: Own, USA

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

year-round lambing, maternal ability.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Adult: 3

Lamb: 5

No. of females: Adult: 63

Lamb: 12

Availability: No

Notes: Polled Dorset; 83 registered.

Contact: Bergerie Sauvé-Laurin

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Same
Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Superior productivity, year-round lambing,

maternal ability.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: 4

Lamb: 4

No. of females: Adult: 33

Lamb: 11

Availability: Yes

Contact: Les Bergeries des Pins Enr.

Source of rams: ROP, USA, NZ

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Semi-intensive Lambing interval: 8-12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Breeding

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year- round lambing, hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct, wool quality.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 1
No. of females: Adult: 13

Availability: Yes

Notes: Polled Dorset; Introduced via Canadian breeder; Breed kept for crossbreeding with Finnsheep ram.

Contact: Mrs. Susan Bergeron

Source of rams: Cornell University

Housing: Conventional/semi-intensive

Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, breeding

Merits: Superior productivity, year-round lambing,

maternal ability.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 2
No. of females: Adult: 6
Lamb: 1

Availability: Yes

Notes: Aiming for 8 mo. lambing interval.

Contact: Hugh & Susan Bignell

Source of rams: Other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

year-round lambing, maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 1
No. of females: Adult: 5
Availability: No

Contact: Dr. Réjean Bouchard

Source of rams: Other breeders
Housing: Conventional
Flock size: Same

Flock size: Same Usage: Show

**Breed: Dorset** 

No. of males: Adult: 10 No. of females: Adult: 500

Availability: Notes: Polled Dorset. Contact: Mrs. Inga Britt

Own, other breeders, ROP Source of rams:

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Decreasing

Meat, wool, show, breeding Usage: Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness,

maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Dorset** 

No. of males: Adult: 31 No. of females: Adult:

Lamb:

Availability: No Contact: Mr. Carl Bryson

Source of rams: ROP

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, wool, milk

Merits: Superior productivity, hardiness, wool quality.

**Breed: Dorset** 

No. of males: Adult: 3 Lamb:

No. of females: Adult:

Lamb:

Availability: Yes Notes: Polled Dorset. **Contact: Mrs. Muriel Burnett** 

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Year-round lambing, maternal ability, flocking

instinct.

**Breed: Dorset** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Adult:

17 Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 98 31

Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Notes: 132 registered.

**Contact: M. Pierre Caron** 

Source of rams: Own, other breeders, ROP, USA

Breeder flock: Yes

Conventional Housing:

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness,

maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: 21

No. of females: Adult: 20 40

Lamb:

Availability: Yes Notes: Horned Dorset. Contact: Mr. Brian Cathcart

Source of rams: Other breeders, Australia

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 6 mo. Flock size:

Increasing Usage: Meat, show, breeding

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct, wool quality.

**Breed: Dorset** 

**CLRC** Registered:

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

15 No. of females: Adult:

Lamb: 3

Availability: Yes

Notes: Horned Dorset; 20 registered.

Contact: Gail & Jy Chiperzak

Own, other breeders, USA Source of rams:

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Increasing Flock size:

Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, year-round lambing,

hardiness, maternal ability.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 2

Availability: Yes Notes: 3 registered.

Contact: Mrs. Diane Cougar-Goodsell

Source of rams: Own, ROP Semi-intensive Housing:

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness,

maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Dorset** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 42

> Lamb: 8

Availability: Yes

Notes: Polled Dorset; 54 registered.

Contact: Mr. Lloyd Deeks

Source of rams: Own, ROP Breeder flock: Yes Housing: Intensive Lambing interval: 7 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Show, breeding

Merits: Year-round lambing, maternal ability,

popularity, handling ease.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: 3

Lamb: 135 No. of females: Adult:

Lamb: 45

Availability: No

Notes: 100 registered.

Contact: M. Marc Descoteaux

ROP Source of rams: Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, year-round lambing,

maternal ability.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of females: Adult: 1 Availability:

Notes: 1 registered.

Contact: Mr. Alex Dixon

Conventional Housing:

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

year-round lambing, maternal ability.

**Breed: Dorset** 

**CLRC** Registered: Adult: No. of males: Lamb: 1

No. of females: Adult: 65

Lamb: 25

Availability: Yes Notes: 25 registered.

**Breed: Dorset** 

**CLRC** Registered:

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: 29

No. of females: Adult: 9 Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Notes: Polled Dorset; 47 registered.

**Breed: Dorset** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 55

Lamb:

Availability: Notes: Polled Dorset.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 30

Lamb: 5

Availability: Yes

Notes: Polled Dorset; 25 registered.

Contact: M. Serge Dumouchel

Source of rams: Own, USA

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 8 mo.

Flock size: Increasing Usage: Breeding, meat

Merits: Year-round lambing.

Contact: Eskrigg Farms

Source of rams: USA

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Same Flock size: Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, disease resistance,

year-round lambing, hardiness.

**Contact: Everitt Farms** 

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Meat, wool, show Usage:

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct, wool quality.

Contact: Fredwin Family Farm

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Meat, show

Merits: Good disposition, appearance, excellent

mothering instinct.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 20 5

Lamb: Availability: Yes

Notes: Polled Dorset; 5 registered.

Contact: Mrs. Gail Freeman

Source of rams: ROP

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Year-round lambing, maternal ability, hybrid F1

cross.

**Breed: Dorset** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Adult: 1

Availability: No

Notes: Crossbreds (Romanov X Dorset):

Males=5, Females=194

Contact: Ronald & Angela Gillespie

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Decreasing

Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

hardiness, maternal ability.

**Breed: Dorset** 

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: 2

12 No. of females: Adult: Lamb:

Availability:

Contact: Mrs. Sharon Goosen

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Decreasing Flock size: Usage: Meat

Merits: Hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult:

No. of females: Adult: 30 Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Notes: 8 registered.

Contact: Mr. B.A. Gough

Source of rams: ROP

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, year-round lambing,

maternal ability.

**Breed: Dorset** 

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: 2

No. of females: Adult: 10 Lamb:

Availability:

Contact: Mr. Barry Grant

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Meat, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

year-round lambing.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: 4

5 Lamb: No. of females: Adult: 46 Lamb: 16

Availability: Yes

Notes: Polled Dorset; 60 registered.

**Contact: Robert & Shirley Graves** 

Own, USA Source of rams: Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, wool, show, breeding Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

year-round lambing, maternal ability.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 10

3 Lamb:

Availability: Yes

**Breed: Dorset** 

Notes: Polled Dorset.

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult:

Availability: Yes Notes: Polled Dorset. Contact: Mr. Gordon Hall

Contact: Mrs. Alice Guthrie

Lambing interval: 8-12 mo.

year-round lambing, hardiness.

Source of rams:

Breeder flock:

Housing:

Flock size:

Source of rams: Own

Housing: Conventional

8 mo. Lambing interval:

Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness, maternal ability.

Own, other breeders

Semi-intensive

Increasing

Meat, show Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

Yes

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males:

Adult: Lamb: No. of females: Adult: 30

Lamb: 24

Availability: Yes

Notes: Polled Dorset; 20 registered.

Contact: Mr. Mery Haivorson

ROP Source of rams: Housing: Intensive Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat

Merits: Superior productivity, disease resistance,

hardiness.

**Breed: Dorset** 

**CLRC** Registered:

No. of males: Adult: Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 49 Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Notes: Polled Dorset; Flock is strongly selected for the ability to breed naturally out

of season; 65 registered.

Contact: Mrs. Carolyn Hills

Source of rams: Own, ROP, USA Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Same Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, year-round lambing,

maternal ability.

**Breed: Dorset** 

No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult:

> Lamb: 14

Availability: Yes Contact: Florence Ross & Arnold Hintermann

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, maternal ability, flocking

instinct.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Adult: 2

Lamb: 3

No. of females: Adult: 15

Lamb: 10

Availability: Yes

Notes: Sheep also registered with Continental

Dorset Club (USA).

Contact: Doreen & Louise Hofer

Source of rams: Own, other breeders, imported

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, wool, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, year-round lambing, hardiness, maternal ability,

flocking instinct.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 4

Lamb: 4

No. of females: Adult: 23

Lamb: 7
vailability: Yes

Availability: Yes
Notes: Horned Dorset; No polled ancestry;

Established 8 single sire lines.

**Contact: Mrs. Debbie Hutchings** 

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, wool, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct, wool quality

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: 1
No. of females: Adult: 24

Lamb: 2

Availability: Yes Notes: 26 registered.

Contact: Tom & Magda Hutchinson

Source of rams: Other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Flock size: Same Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Maternal ability, year-round lambing, lamb

carcass quality, crossing.

**Breed: Dorset** 

No. of males: Adult: 2

Lamb: 8
No. of females: Adult: 7
Lamb: 3

Notes: Polled Dorset.

Contact: Mr. Angus Inksetter

Source of rams: Other breeders, ROP

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Decreasing

Jsage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, year-round lambing,

hardiness, maternal ability, wool quality.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 2
No. of females: Adult: 3

Notes: 5 registered.

Contact: M. Réal Jacques

Source of rams: USA

Housing: Semi-intensive Flock size: Decreasing Usage: Meat

Merits: Meat quality.

**Breed: Dorset** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of females: Adult: 1

Lamb: 1

Yes Availability: Notes: 2 registered.

Contact: Mr. Neil Joiner

Other breeders Source of rams: Conventional Housing:

Lambing interval: 8 mo.

Usage: Meat, show Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness.

**Breed: Dorset** 

No. of males: Adult: 10 No. of females: Adult: 100

Availability:

Contact: Mr. Keith Lamont

Source of rams: Own

Housing: Semi-intensive

8 mo. Lambing interval: Flock size: Same Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct, wool quality.

**Breed: Dorset** 

**CLRC** Registered:

No. of males: Adult:

38 Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 100 60

Lamb:

Availability: Yes Notes: 100 registered. Contact: M. Gerard Laurens

Other breeders Source of rams: Yes

Breeder flock:

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 8 mo.

Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat

Merits: Disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct, wool

quality.

**Breed: Dorset** 

**CLRC** Registered:

No. of males: Adult: Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 38

Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Notes: Breed kept for crossbreeding with Lincoln. Some ewes have a lambing interval

of 8 months.

Contact: LBU Sheep Farm

Source of rams: Own

Housing: Conventional/semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Increasing Flock size: Usage:

Meat, wool, show, breeding Merits: Superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, maternal ability, wool quality.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

No. of males: Adult: Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 63

Lamb: 28

Availability: Yes Notes: 85 registered. Contact: M. Robert Leclair

Source of rams:

ROP, USA Semi-intensive

Housing: Lambing interval: 8 mo.

Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, show, breeding

Merits: Disease resistance, year-round lambing,

hardiness, maternal ability.

**Breed: Dorset** 

No. of males: Adult:

Availability: No

Notes: Polled Dorset.

Contact: Mr. Otto Lehmann

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Semi-intensive

Breeding Usage:

Merits: Superior productivity, good all around sheep.

**Breed: Dorset** 

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 100 65

Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Notes: To improve lambing interval.

Contact: Mme. Marte Lévèsques

Source of rams: Own, other breeders, ROP, USA

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Increasing Breeding

Merits: Disease resistance, hardiness, maternal ability,

flocking instinct, wool quality.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: 2 No. of females: Adult: 40 Availability: Yes

Notes: 10 young animals; Breed kept for

crossbreeding.

**Contact: Locham Brae Farm** 

Source of rams: Other breeders (all over Canada)

Breeder flock: Yes Housing: Intensive Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, wool, show, breeding

Merits: Superior productivity.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Lamb: No. of females: Adult: 2 2 Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Notes: Horned Dorset; 3 registered.

Contact: Mr. Patric Lyster

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness,

maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: 2

Lamb: No. of females: Adult: 60 23

Lamb: Availability: Yes

Notes: Polled Dorset; 91 registered.

Contact: Mr. Patric Lyster

Source of rams: Other breeders, USA

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness,

maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: 1 No. of females: Adult: 90

Availability: Yes

Health status: Tested for Maedi Visna

Notes: Polled Dorset; Closed flock since 1978; established in the dam side from 5 ewes. Free of abortion of all types, Foot Rot and 100% aseason lambing. Tested negative for diseases including 'shepard program' in 1988.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 1
Lamb: 7

No. of females: Adult: 34

Lamb: 18

Availability: Yes Notes: Polled Dorset.

Breed : Dorset

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 2
No. of females: Adult: 42

Notes: Polled Dorset.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 3
Lamb: 5
No. of females: Adult: 30
Lamb: 25

Availability: Yes Notes: 58 registered.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 3
Lamb: 6
No. of females: Adult: 53
Lamb: 17
Availability: Yes
Notes: 73 registered.

Contact: Mrs. Louise Marée

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 8 mo.
Flock size: Increasing
Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, year-round lambing,

maternal ability.

Contact: Mr. Wray Marshall

Source of rams: Own Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 8 mo.
Flock size: Same
Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Year-round lambing, maternal ability.

Contact: Philip & Marilyn Martin

Source of rams: Own, other breeders, ROP

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, wool, show

Merits: Year-round lambing, maternal ability, flocking

instinct.

Contact: Mr. David Mastine

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional
Flock size: Increasing
Usage: Meat, wool, show

Merits: Year-round lambing, maternal ability.

Contact: Mr. Robert Mastine

Source of rams: ROP, Ontario, USA Housing: Semi-intensive Lambing interval: 8-12 mo.

Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Year-round lambing, maternal ability.

**Breed: Dorset** 

No. of males: Adult: 1

Availability: Yes

Contact: Dennis & Louise McBurney

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Decreasing
Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness,

maternal ability.

**Breed: Dorset** 

No. of males: Adult: 10

Lamb: 4 No. of females: Adult: 120

Lamb: 51

Notes: Polled Dorset; Foundation stock:

Australia, NZ, Cornell University.

Contact: Pete & Joyce McCart

Source of rams: Own, other breeders Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, wool, data collection Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, accelerated lambing, hardiness,

maternal ability, wool quality.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: 7
No. of females: Adult: 24

naies: Adult: 24 Lamb: 11

Notes: Polled Dorset.

Contact: Mr. Allan McDougall

Source of rams: USA

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Decreasing

Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness,

maternal ability.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Adult: 3 Lamb: 2

No. of females: Adult: 42 Lamb: 3

Availability: Yes

Contact: Mr. Brian McKee

Source of rams: Housing:

Other breeders Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Year-round lambing, maternal ability.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Lamb: 10 No. of females: Adult: 21

Lamb: 6

Availability: Yes

Notes: 15 registered.

Contact: Mr. Sandy McPhedran

Source of rams: Own

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 8 mo.
Flock size: Same
Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Superior productivity, disease resistance,

year-round lambing, maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 2
Lamb: 1

No. of females: Adult: 70

Lamb: 25

Availability: Yes Notes: Polled Dorset.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: 4

Lamb: 10

No. of females: Adult: 80 Lamb: 10

Availability: Yes
Notes: Polled Dorset.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC No. of females: Adult: 10

Availability: No

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 1
No. of females: Adult: 8
Availability: No
Notes: Polled Dorset.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC No. of females: Adult: 18 Availability: No **Contact: Doug & Dianne Miller** 

Source of rams: Own, USA (Maine)

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 8 mo.
Flock size: Increasing
Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness,

maternal ability, flocking instinct.

Contact: Mr. Geoffrey Moore

Source of rams: Own Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, breeding Merits: Like breed in general.

**Contact: Mrs. Janice Moseley** 

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

year-round lambing, maternal ability.

**Contact: Harvey & Eleanor Oatway** 

Source of rams: Own Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Decreasing Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Superior productivity, year-round lambing,

hardiness, maternal ability, wool quality.

Contact: Mr. Victor Pobran

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Same
Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Year-round lambing, maternal ability.

**Breed: Dorset** 

No. of males: Adult: 4
No. of females: Adult: 75

Availability: No Notes: Horned Dorset.

**Contact: Rathwell Appledore Farm** 

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 8 mo.
Flock size: Decreasing
Usage: Breeding

Merits: Wool quality.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 11
No. of females: Adult: 600

Availability: Yes Notes: Polled Dorset.

Contact: Mr. Walter Renwick

Source of rams: Own

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 8 mo.
Flock size: Same
Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, year-round lambing, hardiness, maternal ability, wool quality.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 1
No. of females: Adult: 140

Lamb: 30

Availability: No Notes: 13 registered.

Contact: Olaf & Monika Rumke

Source of rams: Other breeders, ROP

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness,

maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 1
No. of females: Adult: 1
Availability: Yes
Notes: Polled Dorset.

**Contact: Russwood Claredale Farms** 

Source of rams: ROP Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat

Merits: Year-round lambing, hardiness, maternal

ability.

**Breed**: Dorset

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 3
No. of females: Adult: 33
Lamb: 4

Availability: No

Notes: 36 registered.

Contact: Mr. Paul Saunders

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Same
Usage: Meat, breeding

Merits: Flocking instinct, market demand, carcass

quality, lambing.

**Breed: Dorset** 

No. of males: Adult: 2

8 Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 10 10

Lamb:

Availability: Yes Contact: Mrs. Jacqueline Schram

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Increasing Flock size:

Usage: Meat, wool, show, breeding Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

year-round lambing, maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Dorset** 

**CLRC** Registered: 2 No. of females: Adult:

1 Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Notes: Polled Dorset; Culling severely and attempting to repopulate with embryo

transfers.

Contact: Ted & Rebecca Skinner

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional

Flock size: Same

Usage: Breeding, meat, show Merits: Low maintenance, year-round lambing,

hardiness, maternal ability.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC

Adult: No. of males: 2

Lamb: 4

No. of females: Adult: 15

Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Notes: Source of ram from other breeders in

Ontario.

Contact: Jo & David Sleigh

Source of rams: Own, other breeders), ROP, USA

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 8-10 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, show, breeding

Merits: Superior productivity, year-round lambing,

maternal ability.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult:

Notes: 5 registered.

Contact: Lois & Harley Smith

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Housing: Conventional Flock size: Decreasing

Usage: Meat Merits: Maternal ability.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: 1

Lamb: 1

No. of females: Adult: 19

Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Notes: Polled Dorset; 20 registered.

Contact: Ms. Sandra Smyth

Other breeders Source of rams:

Breeder flock: Yes Housing: Intensive Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Meat, wool, show, breeding Usage: Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

year-round lambing, hardiness, maternal ability, wool

quality.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: Lamb:

7 No. of females: Adult:

1 Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Notes: Breed kept for crossbreeding; NJN 32N ewe appears to be more prolific than the average and inherited.

**Breed: Dorset** 

CLRC Registered: No. of males: Adult: 10 Lamb:

40 No. of females: Adult: 19 Lamb:

Availability: Notes: 71 registered.

**Breed: Dorset** 

No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult:

Availability:

Contact: Mrs. Carolyn Turner

Source of rams: Other breeders Conventional Housing:

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Decreasing Meat, breeding Usage:

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

disease resistance, hardiness, maternal ability.

**Contact: Bonnie Tweedie** 

Own, other breeders Source of rams:

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Meat, wool, show Usage:

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

year-round lambing, maternal ability.

Contact: Joan vanSligtenhorst

Own, other breeders Source of rams:

Breeder flock: Yes

Conventional Housing: 8-12 mo. Lambing interval: Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

year-round lambing, maternal ability.

**Breed: Dorset** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Adult: 4

Lamb: 14 140

No. of females: Adult: Lamb: 20

Availability: Yes

Notes: Polled Dorset; 151 registered; Breed

kept for crossbreeding.

Contact: M. Michel Viens

Source of rams: Own, other breeders, ROP, USA

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Increasing Meat, breeding Usage:

Merits: Low maintenance, disease resistance, year-round lambing, maternal ability, hardiness.

**Breed: Dorset** 

No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 68

Lamb:

Availability: Yes Notes: Horned Dorset. **Contact: Brigitte & Waldemar Weihing** 

Source of rams: Other breeders Conventional Housing:

Lambing interval: 8 mo.

Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness,

maternal ability.

**Breed: Dorset** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 3
No. of females: Adult: 27

Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Notes: Polled Dorset; 30 registered.

Contact: Mr. Edward Williams

Source of rams: Other breeders
Housing: Conventional
Lambing interval: 8-12 mo.
Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, show, breeding

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness,

maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: English Leicester** 

No. of males: Adult: 1 Availability: Yes

Notes: With Jy Chiperzak, Rare Breeds

Conservancy, Madoc, Ontario.

Contact: Mr. Russell Dow

Source of rams: Australia (Tasmania)

Housing: Conventional

Flock size: Same

Storage of semen/embryos: 240 doses of semen (1 ram)

Usage: Wool Merits: Wool quality.

**Breed: Finnish Landrace** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 2
No. of females: Adult: 50

Lamb: 12

Availability: Yes

Contact: Les Bergeries des Pins Enr.

Source of rams: Other breeders, ROP Semi-intensive Lambing interval: 8-12 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Breeding

Merits: Superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness, maternal ability,

flocking instinct, wool quality.

**Breed: Finnish Landrace** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 1

Availability: No

Notes: Breed kept for crossbreeding with

Dorset ewes.

Contact: Mrs. Susan Bergeron

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Semi-intensive

Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, wool, breeding Merits: Superior productivity, wool quality.

**Breed: Finnish Landrace** 

No. of males: Adult: 3 No. of females: Adult: 20 Lamb: 4

Availability: Yes

Contact: Mr. Daniel Bruce

Source of rams: Other breeders (Que.)

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Increasing
Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Lean carcass, maternal ability, wool quality.

**Breed: Finnish Landrace** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 40

Availability:

Notes: Breed kept for increasing prolificacy

by crossbreeding.

Contact: Mr. John Buchanan

Source of rams: Own Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, breeding Merits: Superior productivity.

**Breed: Finnish Landrace** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult:

Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Health status: Tested for Maedi Visna Notes: Breed kept for producing Finn X

Dorset crosses.

Contact: Mrs. Patricia Burger

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Breeding Usage:

Merits: Superior productivity, year-round lambing,

hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Finnish Landrace** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult:

Availability: Yes Notes: 6 registered; Breed kept for increasing prolificacy by crossbreeding.

Contact: Tom & Magda Hutchinson

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes Flock size: Same Breeding Usage: Merits: Prolificacy in crosses.

**Breed: Finnish Landrace** 

No. of males: Lamb: No. of females: Adult: 97

> Lamb: 3

Availability: No **Contact: Marchonique Ranch** 

Source of rams:

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Superior productivity, maternal ability.

**Breed: Finnish Landrace** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

No. of males: Adult: 2 Lamb: 4

No. of females: Adult: 16 Lamb: 10

Availability: Yes

Notes: 23 registered; Breed kept for

crossbreeding.

Contact: M. Michel Viens

Source of rams: Own, other breeders, ROP, USA

Breeder flock:

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Breeding

Merits: Superior productivity, year-round lambing,

maternal ability.

**Breed: Hampshire** 

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Adult: 6

Lamb: 8
No. of females: Adult: 40
Lamb: 15

Availability: Lamb: Yes

Notes: Used as terminal sire.

**Contact: Dwayne Acres** 

Source of rams: Own, other breeders, ROP, USA

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, breeding Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness.

**Breed: Hampshire** 

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Adult: 1 Lamb: 10

No. of females: Adult: 20

Lamb: 20

Availability: Yes

Contact: Mr. Lloyd Ayre

Source of rams: USA

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Decreasing
Usage: Show, breeding

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, hardiness, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Hampshire** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: 1

No. of females: Adult: 25 Lamb: 5

Availability: No

Notes: 20 registered; Kept for crossbreeding and attempting to expand to 50 ewes each of the Hampshire and Romanov breeds by the end of 1994, to produce Hampshire x

Romanov crosses in 1995.

Contact: M. Paul E. Barbeau

Source of rams: Own
Housing: Intensive
Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Increasing
Usage: Breeding

Merits: Large carcass, agreeable, not nervous.

**Breed: Hampshire** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: 2

Lamb: 9

No. of females: Adult: 20

Lamb: 10

Availability: Yes

Contact: Mr. Gregory Bell

Source of rams: Other breeders, Imported

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, maternal ability, meat

characteristics.

**Breed: Hampshire** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 1
No. of females: Adult: 5
Availability: No

Contact: Dr. Réjean Bouchard

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional Same

Flock size: Same Usage: Show

**Breed: Hampshire** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Adult: 2 Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 14 19

Lamb: Availability: Yes Notes: 21 registered.

**Breed: Hampshire** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Adult: 22 No. of females: Adult:

Availability: Notes: 9 registered.

**Breed: Hampshire** 

Registered: CLRC Adult: No. of males: 3 5 Lamb:

27 No. of females: Adult:

Lamb: Availability: Yes

Notes: 44 registered.

**Breed: Hampshire** 

No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 3

Availability:

**Breed: Hampshire** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Lamb: No. of females: Adult: Lamb:

Availability: No

Contact: Tracey & John Crandlemire

Breeder flock: Yes Housing: Intensive Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Meat, breeding Usage:

Merits: Hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct.

Contact: Mr. Lloyd Deeks

Source of rams: Other breeders, ROP

Housing: Intensive Lambing interval: 12 mo. Increasing Flock size:

Meat, show, breeding Usage:

Merits: Demand, size.

Contact: Eskrigg Farms

Source of rams: ROP, USA Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, disease resistance, hardiness.

**Contact: Miss Heather Fraser** 

Source of rams: Own, other breeders Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness, maternal ability.

Contact: Friends of the Ukranian Village Society

Source of rams: Rented

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Show

Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness, maternal ability.

Breed: Hampshire

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Adult: 2 Lamb: 3

No. of females: Adult: 14 Lamb: 8

Availability: Lamb: Yes

Notes: 22 registered.

Contact: R. Poirier & R. Garant

Source of rams: Other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Increasing
Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Superior productivity, hardiness.

**Breed: Hampshire** 

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Adult: 2 Lamb: 16

No. of females: Adult: 18 Lamb: 6

Lamb: Availability: Yes

Notes: 36 registered.

**Contact: Francois Gelinas** 

Source of rams: Own, other breeders, USA

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, show, breeding

Merits: Terminal crossing, demand for breeding stock.

**Breed: Hampshire** 

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Adult: 1

No. of females: Adult: 12

Lamb: 4

Availability: Yes

Contact: Mr. Mark Hannaford

Source of rams: Other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, wool, show

Merits: Hardiness.

**Breed: Hampshire** 

No. of males: Adult: 3

Lamb: 3

5

No. of females: Adult: 18

Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Contact: Mr. C. Hermansen

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, wool, show, breeding

Merits: Low maintenance, disease resistance, hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct, feed efficiency, meat

quality, rapid gains.

**Breed: Hampshire** 

No. of males: Lamb: 1 No. of females: Adult: 3

Availability: No

Notes: Ram bought for crossbreeding

purposes only.

**Contact: Florence Ross & Arnold Hintermann** 

Source of rams: Other breeders

Housing: Intensive
Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Usage: Meat

Merits: Superior productivity.

Breed : Hampshire Contact: Mr. LeRoy Houston

Registered: CLRC Source of rams: USA

No. of males: Adult: 2 Housing: Semi-intensive

No. of females: Adult: 25

Availability: No

Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Same
Usage: Meat
Merits: Superior productivity.

Breed : Hampshire Contact: Mr. Angus Inksetter

No. of males: Adult: 2 Source of rams: Other breeders, ROP

Lamb: 16 Housing: Conventional

No. of females: Adult: 30 Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Lamb: 25 Flock size: Increasing

Availability: No Usage: Meat Merits: Superior productivity.

Breed : Hampshire Contact: Mr. Edward Janzen

No. of males: Adult: 2 Source of rams: Other breeders, ROP

No. of females: Adult: 15
Lamb: 7
Housing: Semi-intensive
Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Increasing

Lamb: 7 Flock size: Increasing Availability: Yes Usage: Meat

Merits: Superior productivity, maternal ability.

Breed : Hampshire Contact: Mrs. Sherry Jurke

Registered: CLRC Source of rams: Own, other breeders

No. of males: Adult: 4

Lamb: 7

No. of females: Adult: 35

Housing: Intensive
Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Same

Lamb: 15 Usage: Meat, show

Availability: Yes Merits: Hardiness.

Breed : Hampshire Contact: Mrs. Lois Laberge

Registered: CLRC Source of rams: Own, other breeders, ROP

No. of males: Adult: 15 Breeder flock: Yes

Lamb: 17 Housing: Conventional

No. of females: Adult: 94 Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Lamb: 32 Flock size: Same

Availability: Yes Usage: Meat

Availability: Yes Usage: Mea Merits: Carcass quality.

**Breed: Hampshire** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 10

Availability: No Contact: Ms. Dana Landry

Other breeders Source of rams: Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Hardiness.

**Breed: Hampshire** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Adult: 5 No. of females: Adult: Availability: Yes

Notes: Breed kept for crossbreeding.

Contact: Locham Brae Farm

Source of rams: Other breeders (all over Canada)

Breeder flock: Housing: Intensive Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, wool, breeding

**Breed: Hampshire** 

Registered: **CLRC** Adult: No. of males: Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 24

Lamb:

Availability: No Contact: Mr. Fred Lowden

Own, imported Source of rams: Yes

Breeder flock:

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, show, breeding Merits: Meat quality, docile, showy appearance.

**Breed: Hampshire** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: 3 No. of females: Adult: 11

Lamb:

Availability: Yes Contact: Mrs. Linda McDonald

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: **Increasing** Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity.

**Breed: Hampshire** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: 6

Lamb: 13

No. of females: Adult: 79

Lamb: 34

Availability: Yes

Notes: 111 registered; Breed kept for

crossbreeding.

Contact: George M. Parent

Source of rams: Own, other breeders, ROP

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 7-8 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, breeding

Merits: Low maintenance, daily gain, carcass quality, lean meat yield, disease resistance, hardiness, maternal

ablility, flocking instinct.

Breed: Hampshire

**CLRC** Registered:

No. of males: Adult: 5 45

No. of females: Adult:

Contact: Mr. Wayne Richards

Source of rams: **ROP** 

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Meat, wool Usage:

Merits: Superior productivity, hardiness, maternal

ability.

**Breed: Hampshire** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

No. of females: Adult:

3 Lamb:

Contact: Ro-onna Acres

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Hampshire** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

No. of males: Adult: 2 No. of females: Adult:

No Availability:

Notes: 2 registered.

Contact: Laurence & Kristi Roy

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Decreasing Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity.

**Breed: Hampshire** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: 13

No. of females: Adult: 16

Lamb:

Availability: Yes Notes: 10 registered. Contact: Mr. Ian Sall

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, show

**Breed: Hampshire** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult:

No. of females: Adult: Availability:

Contact: Mr. Bruce Sinclair

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, show, breeding

Merits: Meat quality.

**Breed: Hampshire** 

No. of males: Adult: 1

Lamb: 2 Adult: 4

No. of females: Adult:

Lamb: 1

Contact: Mr. Kenneth Webster

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Increasing
Usage: Meat, breeding

Merits: Superior productivity, maternal ability.

**Breed: Icelandic** 

No. of females: Adult: 30

Availability: Yes

Contact: Mr. Thomas Eggertson

Source of rams: Iceland Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Storage of semen/embryos: Ordered from Iceland

Usage: Meat, skin, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, wool

quality, hide quality.

Breed: Icelandic

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: 1

Lamb: 9 s: Adult: 11

No. of females: Adult: 11 Lamb: 9

Availability: Yes

Notes: Source of handspinning wool, tanned

hides; Breed kept for crossbreeding.

**Contact: David & Nancy Pease** 

Source of rams: Other breeders, Iceland

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, wool, breeding

Merits: Maternal ability, low maintenance, disease

resistance, hardiness, wool quality.

**Breed: Icelandic** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult:

Adult: 13 Lamb: 7

No. of females: Adult: 120

Availability: Yes

Notes: 140 registered.

Contact: Yeoman Farm

Source of rams: Own

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, breeding, wool

Merits: Conformation, rapid growth, taste, prolificacy,

exotic looks and fibre (wool).

Breed: Jacob

No. of females: Adult:

Availability: Yes

**Contact: Mr. Daniel Bruce** 

Source of rams: Other breeders Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Increasing
Usage: Wool, show, pet

Merits: Wool quality.

Breed: Jacob

No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 5

Notes: Host family for Joywind Farm Conservancy, with 4 males and 4 females. Contact: Dan & Judy Fitzsimmons

Housing:

Conventional

Breed: Jacob

No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: Contact: Mr. Allan Hill

Source of rams: Own

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Usage: Maintain Rare Breed

Merits: Low maintenance, disease resistance, hardiness.

**Breed: Jacob** 

No. of males: Adult: Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 8 Lamb: 3

Availability: Yes **Contact: Joywind Farm Rare Breeds Conservancy** 

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Increasing Flock size: Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, maternal ability, wool

quality, visually attractive.

Breed: Jacob

No. of males: Adult: 2 No. of females: Adult: Availability: No

Contact: Puck's Farm

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional Flock size: Decreasing Meat, wool, show Usage:

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

maternal ability, wool quality.

**Breed: Jacob** 

Registered: Jacob Sheep Breeders Assoc.

No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: Availability:

Contact: Mr. Alan Regan

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, wool, milk, show

Merits: Maternal ability, wool quality, appearance.

Breed: Jacob

No. of males: Adult: 1 No. of females: Adult: 1 Contact: Riverview Park & Zoo

Source of rams: Other breeders
Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Usage: Show

Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness.

**Breed: Jacob** 

Registered: Jacob Sheep Breeders Assoc.

No. of males: Adult: 2 No. of females: Adult: 5 Lamb: 2

Availability: No

**Contact: Miss Megan Scammell** 

Source of rams: Own, USA Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Wool, show

Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness, maternal ability,

flocking instinct, wool quality.

**Breed: Jacob** 

No. of males: Lamb: 1 No. of females: Adult: 3 Lamb: 1

Availability: Yes

Notes: Rare Breeds Conservancy.

Contact: Mrs. Maria Trauttmansdorff

Source of rams: USA Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Disease resistance, hardiness.

Breed : Karakul

No. of males: Lamb: 1 No. of females: Adult: 3 Availability: No Contact: Gail & Jy Chiperzak

Source of rams: Other breeders, Imported

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Karakul** 

No. of males: Lamb: 1 No. of females: Adult: 5

Lamb:

Availability: No

Contact: Katrina & John Fowler

Source of rams: Own Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 8 mo.
Flock size: Increasing
Usage: Meat, fur

Merits: Low maintenance, disease resistance, hardiness,

maternal ability, flocking instinct.

Breed: Karakul

3 2 No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult:

8 Lamb: 3

Availability: No Contact: Joywind Farm Rare Breeds Conservancy

Source of rams: Other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Conventional Housing: 12 mo. Lambing interval:

Flock size: Increasing

Fur Usage: Merits: Low maintenance.

**Breed: Karakul** 

No. of males: Adult: Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 7 Lamb: 4

Availability: Yes Contact: Philip & Marilyn Martin

Source of rams: Other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Increasing Flock size:

Usage: Meat, wool, show

Breed: Karakul

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Adult: 1 Lamb:

6 No. of females: Adult: 13

Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Notes: Experimenting with crossbreeding of Karakul rams with Dorset, Corriedale and

lacob ewes.

Contact: Mrs. Diana McLean & Mr. Wilf Stefan

Source of rams: Own Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 6-7 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, milk, hair

Merits: Year-round lambing, hardiness, maternal

ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Katahdin** 

Registered: KHSI (USA) No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 14 2

Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Notes: Katahdin sheep have to be dewormed under intensified grazing, however, they do not get keds as wool sheep do or lice as cattle. Contact: Mrs. Anne Carmichael

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, disease resistance, hardiness,

maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Katahdin** 

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: 20

No. of females: Adult: 16

> Lamb: 8

Availability: Yes Contact: Mr. Brian Digness

Source of rams: USA

Conventional Housing:

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness,

maternal ability, flocking instinct.

Breed: Katahdin

KHSI (USA) Registered: No. of males: Adult:

No. of females: Adult:

Contact: Tim & Jean Hamm

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Increasing Meat, breeding Usage:

Merits: Superior productivity, hardiness, prolificacy,

non shearing.

Breed: Katahdin

No. of females: Adult: 6 Availability: Yes

Contact: Karl & Ellen Himmer

Source of rams: Own Breeder flock: Yes Lambing interval: 7 mo.

Flock size: Decreasing Meat, breeding Usage:

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness,

maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Katahdin** 

Registered: KHSI (USA) No. of males: Adult: 9 No. of females: Adult:

Lamb:

Availability: No Contact: Mr. Allan Reid

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, breeding

Merits: Hardiness, no wool.

Breed: Katahdin

Registered: KHSI No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 30 Lamb: 11

Availability:

Contact: Rick & Sharon Schaefer

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 10 mo. Increasing

Flock size: Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, disease resistance, extended

lambing, maternal ability, flocking instinct.

Breed: Katahdin

Registered: **KHSI** No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: 17 No. of females: Adult: 70

Lamb:

Availability:

Contact: Mr. Bruce Stieb

USA Source of rams:

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, year-round lambing,

hardiness, flocking instinct.

Breed: Katahdin

**KHSI** Registered:

No. of males: Adult: Lamb: 10 No. of females: Adult: 12

Lamb: 15

Availability: Yes

Notes: No shearing and tail docking. A mild meat good for consumption, hot or cold.

Non-seasonal breeder.

Contact: Noella & Jim Tremblay

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

disease resistance, hardiness, maternal ability, flocking

**Breed: Leicester** 

No. of males: Adult: 17 No. of females: Adult:

Availability:

Contact: Mr. Brian Atkinson

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: **Increasing** Usage: Show, breeding Merits: Like breed in general.

**Breed: Leicester** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Lamb: 1 No. of females: Adult: 11

Lamb: 10

Availability: Yes

Notes: Breed kept for crossbreeding with Suffolk; Recently purchased Border Leicester ram lamb from USA can be traced to England. Contact: Mrs. Judy Bergman

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Conventional Housing: Lambing interval: 10 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, wool, breeding

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct, wool quality.

**Breed: Leicester** 

Registered: No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 5 Availability: No

Contact: Dr. Réjean Bouchard

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional

Flock size: Same Usage: Show

**Breed**: Leicester

No. of males: Adult: 11

No. of females: Adult: Availability: Yes

**Contact: Mrs. Dorrie Bowering** 

Source of rams: ROP

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Decreasing Usage: Wool, show

**Breed: Leicester** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Lamb: No. of females: Adult:

Availability: Notes: 2 registered. Contact: Fred & Marlene Brettell

Source of rams: Other breeders, Imported

Breeder flock: Yes

Conventional Housing: Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, wool, show

Merits: Low maintenance, maternal ability, wool

quality.

**Breed: Leicester** 

Registered: **CLRC** Adult: No. of males: Lamb: 5

No. of females: Adult: 12

Lamb: 14

Availability: Yes Contact: Mr. J.K. Campbell

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, wool, show Merits: Maternal ability, wool quality.

**Breed: Leicester** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of females: Adult: 5

Availability: Yes Contact: Thomas & Joan Dales

Source of rams: Own, other breeders Semi-intensive Housing:

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Same

Meat, breeding Usage:

Merits: Superior productivity, wool quality.

**Breed: Leicester** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 14

Availability: Yes Notes: 19 registered. Contact: Mr. Lloyd Deeks

Source of rams: Own, ROP Housing: Intensive Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Decreasing

Usage: Meat, wool, show, breeding

Merits: Wool quality, easier to shear.

**Breed: Leicester** 

Registered: CLRC No. of females: Adult: 2 Availability: Notes: 2 registered.

Contact: Mr. Alex Dixon

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Usage:

Same Meat, wool

Merits: Maternal ability, wool quality.

**Breed**: Leicester

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 5

Availability:

Contact: Mrs. Ruth Einarson

Source of rams: Other breeders Conventional Housing:

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Wool

Merits: Wool quality.

**Breed: Leicester** 

**CLRC** Registered: Adult: No. of males: 1 Lamb: 3

No. of females: Adult: 10

Lamb: 3

Notes: 17 registered.

**Contact: François Gelinas** 

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Usage: Wool, show

Merits: Wool quality.

**Breed: Leicester** 

Registered: **CLRC** 2 No. of males: Adult:

3 Lamb: 36

No. of females: Adult: Lamb: 16

Availability: Yes **Contact: Doug Andrews & John Good** 

Own, other breeders Source of rams:

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

12 mo. Lambing interval: Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, wool, show

Merits: Low maintenance, maternal ability, flocking

instinct, wool quality.

**Breed: Leicester** 

No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 23

Availability:

Contact: Mr. Don Grant

Source of rams: Own, ROP

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, wool, show

Merits: Maternal ability, flocking instinct, wool quality.

**Breed: Leicester** 

No. of males: Adult: 5

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 12

Availability:

**Contact: Robert & Shirley Graves** 

Own Source of rams:

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Increasing Flock size:

Meat, wool, show, breeding Merits: Maternal ability, compatible with Dorsets.

**Breed: Leicester** 

Registered: **CLRC** Adult:

No. of males: 5 Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: Lamb: 11

Availability: Yes

Contact: Mrs. Alice Guthrie

Other breeders Source of rams:

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Same Flock size:

Usage: Meat, wool, show Merits: Maternal ability, wool quality.

**Breed: Leicester** 

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

17

No. of females: Adult: 20

Lamb:

Availability: Yes Contact: Mr. Gerald Hunter

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, wool, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

maternal ability, wool quality.

**Breed: Leicester** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

No. of males: Adult:

No. of females: Adult:

Availability: No

Notes: 6 registered.

Contact: Mr. Melville James

Source of rams: Own, other breeders Yes

Breeder flock:

Conventional

Housing: Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Wool quality.

**Breed: Leicester** 

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

4

No. of females: Adult: 17

Lamb:

Availability: Yes Contact: M. Robert Laberge

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock:

Yes Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Show

Usage: Merits: Wool quality.

**Breed: Leicester** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 10

Lamb:

Availability: No Contact: Labrecque et Pepin

Source of rams: Breeder flock:

Own Yes

Housing:

Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size:

Same

Meat, show

Usage:

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, hardiness, maternal ability, wool

quality.

**Breed: Leicester** 

No. of females: Adult: 1

Lamb:

Contact: Philip & Marilyn Martin

Housing: Flock size: Conventional Decreasing

Usage:

Wool

**Breed: Leicester** 

**CLRC** Registered:

No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 10

Lamb: 6

Availability: Yes

Notes: 19 régistered.

Contact: M. Phillipe McCarthy

Source of rams:

Own, other breeders

Breeder flock:

Housing: Conventional

Yes

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Show, breeding Usage:

Merits: Used to them, wool quality, meat quality.

**Breed: Leicester** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

No. of females: Adult: 3 Contact: Mrs. Diane Moore

Source of rams:

Other breeders Conventional

Housing: Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size:

Same

Usage:

Wool

Merits: Maternal ability, wool quality.

**Breed: Leicester** 

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Adult:

No. of females: Adult:

Availability: Yes

Notes: 59 registered.

Contact: George, Heather & Terry Myers

Source of rams:

Other breeders

Housing:

Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size:

Increasing Meat, wool, show

Usage:

Merits: Maternal ability, flocking instinct, wool quality.

**Breed: Leicester** 

**CLRC** Registered:

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

57

No. of females: Adult: 12

> Lamb: 3

Availability: Yes Contact: Mr. Lawrence Nodwell

Source of rams:

Other breeders

Housing: Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Conventional

Flock size:

Same

Usage:

Meat, wool, show

Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness, maternal ability,

wool quality.

**Breed: Leicester** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Lamb:

No. of males: Lamb: 2 No. of females: Adult: 13

Lamb:

Availability: No

Contact: B. McLean & T. Wilson

Source of rams: Own

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Decreasing

Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, disease resistance, hardiness,

maternal ability, wool quality.

Breed: Lincoln

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Adult: 1 No. of females: Adult: 18

Availability: Yes

Contact: Denis & Jean Crankshaw

Source of rams: Other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, wool, breeding, sheepskins Merits: Superior productivity, hardiness, maternal

ability, wool quality.

Breed: Lincoln

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Adult: 2

Lamb: 1

No. of females: Adult: 12

Lamb: 2

Availability: Ye

Contact: Mr. Keith Etsell

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Decreasing

Usage: Meat, wool, show

Merits: Maternal ability, flocking instinct, wool quality.

Breed: Lincoln

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: 3

3

45

No. of females: Adult: 7

Lamb:

Availability: Yes

**Contact: Jeff & Antje Giles** 

Source of rams: Own

Housing: Conventional Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Maternal ability, wool quality.

Breed: Lincoln

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Lamb: 14

No. of females: Adult: 70

Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Notes: 110 registered; Sometimes lambing

interval of 6 months.

Contact: Glen G. Glaspell & Sons

Source of rams: Own, ROP Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, wool, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

disease resistance, hardiness, maternal ability, flocking

instinct, wool quality.

Breed: Lincoln

No. of males: Lamb: 1 No. of females: Adult: 10

Lamb: 5

Availability: Yes

Contact: Mr. Barry Grant

Source of rams: Other breeders, ROP

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, wool, show

Merits: Superior productivity, maternal ability, wool

quality.

Breed: Lincoln

No. of males: Adult: 3 No. of females: Adult: 12

Lamb: Availability: Yes

Notes: Longwool sheep; Breed kept for

crossbreeding with Dorset.

Contact: LBU Sheep Farm

Source of rams: USA

Housing: Conventional/semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, wool, show, breeding Merits: Superior productivity, disease resistance,

hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct, wool

quality.

**Breed: Lincoln** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: 6

Lamb: 7
No. of females: Adult: 46

Lamb: 12

Notes: Registered Lincoln Long Wool.

Contact: H.M. Lee & Sons

Source of rams: Own, USA Usage: Wool Merits: Wool quality, docile.

**Breed: Merino** 

No. of males: Adult: 1 No. of females: Adult: 4

Availability: No

Contact: Mrs. Elsie Doolan

Source of rams: Own

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Increasing
Usage: Wool

Merits: Maternal ability, flocking instinct, wool quality.

**Breed: Merino** 

No. of males: Adult: 3

Lamb: 12

No. of females: Adult: 10

Lamb: 15

Availability: Yes

Contact: Sassi Sandy Acres Sheep Stud Inc.

Source of rams: Own, USA, Australia (A.I.)

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 8-12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Wool

Usage: Wool Merits: Low maintenance, year-round lambing,

hardiness, flocking instinct, wool quality.

Breed: Navajo

No. of males: Adult: 5
No. of females: Adult: 8
Availability: Yes
Notes: Churro.

Contact: Lyle & Fione Young

Source of rams: Own, other breeders, USA

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, wool, horn, milk

Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness, maternal ability, no lambing difficulty, diversified income sources,

rarity.

**Breed: Newfoundland** 

No. of males: Lamb: 4 No. of females: Lamb: 10 Availability: No **Contact: Joywind Farm Rare Breeds Conservancy** 

Source of rams: Other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Disease resistance, hardiness, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Newfoundland** 

No. of males: Adult: 1 Lamb: 7 No. of females: Adult: 6 Lamb: 4

Availability: No

Contact: Mr. Wendell Palmer

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 8 mo.

Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

hardiness, maternal ability, rare breed.

**Breed: North Country Cheviot** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 1
No. of females: Adult: 10
Lamb: 5

Availability: No Notes: 3 registered.

Contact: Mrs. Angela Aucoin

Source of rams: Own, other breeders Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, wool, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, hardiness, flocking instinct.

**Breed: North Country Cheviot** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 1
No. of females: Adult: 5
Availability: No

Contact: Dr. Réjean Bouchard

Source of rams: Other breeders
Housing: Conventional
Flock size: Same

Usage: Show

**Breed: North Country Cheviot** 

No. of males: Adult: 10 300 No. of females: Adult:

Availability:

Contact: Mr. G.R. Boudreau

Own, other breeders, ROP Source of rams:

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Increasing Flock size: Meat, wool Usage:

Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness, disease resistance.

**Breed: North Country Cheviot** 

No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult:

Notes: Good for a meat breed.

Contact: Mrs. Robin Brown

Own, other breeders Source of rams:

Housing: Conventional/semi-intensive

12 mo. Lambing interval:

Meat, wool, show, breeding Usage:

Merits: Hardiness, wool quality.

**Breed: North Country Cheviot** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: 1 Lamb: 5

17 No. of females: Adult:

Lamb: 14

Yes Availability:

Contact: Mr. J.K. Campbell

Other breeders Source of rams: Conventional Housing:

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, wool, show Merits: Hardiness, maternal ability.

**Breed: North Country Cheviot** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 14 Contact: M. Joel Girard

Breeder flock: Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Merits: Low maintenance, maternal ability.

**Breed: North Country Cheviot** 

CLRC Registered: No. of males: Adult: 1 Lamb: 3 No. of females: Adult: 6 3 Lamb:

No Availability: Notes: 13 registered. Contact: M. Robert Girard

Other breeders Source of rams:

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Meat, show Usage:

Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness.

**Breed: North Country Cheviot** 

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: 4

No. of females: Adult: 40

s: Adult: 40 Lamb: 12

Availability:

Yes

Contact: Mr. James Hewitt

Source of rams: ROP

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, wool, breeding

Merits: Disease resistance, hardiness, maternal ability,

flocking instinct.

**Breed: North Country Cheviot** 

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: 3

No. of females: Adult: 35

Lamb: 7

Availability: Yes

Contact: Mr. Clarence Jones

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Same Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness, maternal ability.

**Breed: North Country Cheviot** 

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Lamb: 1

No. of females: Adult: 4

Lamb:

Notes: 5 registered.

Contact: Stephen & Annajane Lawrie

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, wool, show
Merits: Low maintenance, disease resistance, hardiness,

maternal ability.

**Breed: North Country Cheviot** 

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Adult: 3

Lamb: 1

No. of females: Adult: 15

Availability: Yes

Contact: Mr. Eckehart Marenholtz

Source of rams: Other breeders, ROP

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, wool, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

hardiness, maternal ability.

**Breed: North Country Cheviot** 

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Adult: 3

Lamb: 4

No. of females: Adult: 46

Lamb: 12

Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Health status: Tested for Maedi Visna

Contact: Mr. W.G. Mathewson

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, disease resistance, hardiness,

maternal ability.

**Breed: North Country Cheviot** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

Adult: No. of males: 1

19 Lamb: No. of females: Adult: 17

Lamb: 8

Availability: Yes Notes: 11 registered. Contact: Mrs. Ann McClure

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Decreasing

Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness, maternal ability.

**Breed: North Country Cheviot** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

No. of males: Adult: 2

Lamb: No. of females: Adult: 16

Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Notes: 22 registered.

**Contact: M. Theo Montminy** 

Source of rams: Own, USA

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Decreasing Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Disease resistance, hardiness, maternal ability.

**Breed: North Country Cheviot** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

No. of males: Adult:

No. of females: Adult: 18

Lamb: Availability: Yes

**Contact: Russwood Claredale Farms** 

Source of rams: ROP

Conventional Housing:

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat

Merits: Hardiness, maternal ability.

**Breed: North Country Cheviot** 

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Adult:

No. of females: Adult: 60

Availability: Yes Contact: Mr. Bruce Sinclair

Source of rams: Other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Decreasing Flock size:

Usage: Meat, show, breeding

Merits: Maternal ability.

**Breed: North Country Cheviot** 

CLRC Registered:

No. of males: Adult: 3

Lamb: 4

No. of females: Adult: 15

Lamb:

Availability:

Yes

Notes: Culling severely and attempting to repopulate with embryo transfers.

Contact: Ted & Rebecca Skinner

Source of rams: Own, other breeders, ROP

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage:

Usage: Breeding, meat, show Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: North Country Cheviot** 

No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 65

Yes Availability:

Contact: Mr. W.W. Stephen

Source of rams: Own, other breeders, USA

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, breeding Merits: Maternal ability, wool quality.

**Breed: North Country Cheviot** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 20 Lamb: 2

Availability: Yes Notes: 23 registered. Contact: Mr. William Stonehouse

Source of rams: Other breeders, ROP

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Breeding

Merits: Low maintenance, disease resistance, hardiness,

maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: North Country Cheviot** 

No. of females: Adult: Lamb:

Availability: No Contact: Mr. J.C. Wilson

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, breeding

Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness, maternal ability.

**Breed: North Country Cheviot** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: 6

Lamb: 5 22

No. of females: Adult: Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Notes: Used for educational display.

Contact: D. Wytinck

Source of rams: Own, ROP, other breeders (Alberta)

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Semi-intensive Lambing interval: 10-12 mo. Increasing Flock size:

Usage: Meat, wool, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, hardiness, maternal ability, wool quality, carcass

quality.

**Breed: Outaouais Arcott** 

No. of males: Adult: 3

Lamb: 20

No. of females: Adult: 32

Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Notes: In 1994, out of 26 ewes lambing 82 lambs were born, among those born 10 lambs

15

died.

Contact: Mr. Rick Butler

Source of rams: Own

Conventional Housing: Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, milk

Merits: Superior productivity, year-round lambing, maternal ability, flocking instinct, good temperament,

feet do not require trimming.

**Breed: Outaouais Arcott** Contact: Dr. W.M. Palmer

Own Source of rams: **CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Adult: Breeder flock: Yes

Semi-intensive Housing: 50 No. of females: Adult: Availability:

12 mo. Lambing interval: Yes Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Superior productivity, maternal ability.

**Breed: Outaouais Arcott** Contact: Dr. J.G. Proulx

Source of rams: Own, ROP No. of males: Adult: 11 Breeder flock: Yes Lamb: 95 Housing: Intensive No. of females: Adult:

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Lamb: 40 Flock size: Same No Availability: Research

Usage: Merits: Superior productivity, hardiness, maternal

ability.

**Breed: Outaouais Arcott** Contact: Mrs. Jacqueline Schram

Own, other breeders No. of males: Adult: 3 Source of rams:

Breeder flock: Yes Lamb: 10

Conventional No. of females: Adult: 20 Housing:

Lambing interval: 12 mo. 20 Lamb: Increasing Flock size: Availability: Yes

Meat, show, breeding Usage:

Merits: Superior productivity, year-round lambing, maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Oxford Down Contact: Miss Margaret Bell** 

Conventional No. of females: Adult: Housing: Decreasing Flock size: Wool

Usage: Merits: Maternal ability, docile.

**Breed: Oxford Down** Contact: Mr. Kenneth Brock

Housing: Conventional **CLRC** Registered:

Lambing interval: 12 mo. No. of females: Adult: 1 Flock size: Same Availability: No Usage: Meat Merits: Maternal ability. Notes: 1 registered.

**Breed: Oxford Down** 

No. of males: Adult: 20 No. of females: Adult:

Lamb:

Availability: No Contact: Mr. Peter Conway

Source of rams: Other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Intensive Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Meat

Usage:

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness,

maternal ability, wool quality.

**Breed: Oxford Down** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

Adult: No. of males: Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 6 Lamb:

Notes: 11 registered.

Contact: M. Marc Descoteaux

Source of rams:

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, show Merits: Low maintenance.

**Breed: Oxford Down** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult:

10 Lamb: 6

No. of females: Adult: 27

Lamb: 11

Availability: Yes Contact: Mr. Russell Dow

Source of rams: Own, USA Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

hardiness, maternal ability.

**Breed: Oxford Down** 

**CLRC** Registered:

Adult: No. of males:

Lamb: 11 No. of females: Adult: 20

Lamb:

Availability: Yes Notes: 40 registered. Contact: Rémi Gelinas

Source of rams: Own, other breeders, USA

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat, show Merits: Terminal crossing.

**Breed: Oxford Down** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: 3

No. of females: Adult: 11

Availability:

Lamb: Yes

Contact: Jeff & Antje Giles

Source of rams:

Own

Housing:

Conventional Increasing

Flock size:

Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

maternal ability.

**Breed: Oxford Down** 

2 2 No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: Lamb: 3

Availability: Yes Contact: Robert & Shirley Graves

Source of rams: Other breeders

Housing: Semi-intensive Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Meat, wool, show, breeding Usage:

**Breed: Oxford Down** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

No. of males: Adult:

2 Lamb: No. of females: Adult: 6

Lamb:

Availability: No Notes: 14 registered. Contact: Mr. Robert Mastine

Source of rams: Other breeders, ROP

Breeder flock: Yes Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Low maintenance, maternal ability.

**Breed: Oxford Down** 

**CLRC** Registered:

No. of females: Adult:

Lamb: 5

Availability: No Contact: Mr. James May

Source of rams: Other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Increasing Flock size:

Meat, wool, show Usage:

Merits: Superior productivity, maternal ability.

**Breed: Oxford Down** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

No. of males: Adult:

> Lamb: 20

No. of females: Adult: 31

Lamb:

Availability:

Notes: 35 registered.

Contact: Mr. Howard Mclean

Other breeders Source of rams:

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Meat, show, breeding Usage:

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Oxford Down** 

Registered:

No. of males: Adult:

No. of females: Adult: 8

Lamb:

Notes: 9 registered.

Contact: Ro-onna Acres

Source of rams:

Other breeders Semi-intensive

Housing: Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size:

Increasing

Meat, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Oxford Down** 

6 No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: 16

No. of females: Adult: 27

Lamb: 18

Availability: Yes Contact: Russel J. Simpson & Son

Source of rams: Own, USA

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, wool, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

hardiness, maternal ability.

**Breed: Oxford Down** 

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 18

Lamb: 4

Availability: Yes

Notes: Culling severely and attempting to

repopulate with embryo transfers.

Contact: Ted & Rebecca Skinner

Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Breeding, meat, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, year-round lambing, hardiness, maternal ability.

**Breed: Polypay** 

**CLRC** Registered:

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: 10

No. of females: Adult: 130

Lamb: 54

Availability: Yes

Notes: 199 registered.

Contact: Jean-Guy Chouinard & Nancy Caron

Source of rams: Other breeders (Alberta)

Increasing Flock size: Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Superior productivity, disease resistance,

year-round lambing, hardiness, maternal ability, wool

quality, prolificacy, profitability.

**Breed**: Polypay

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Adult:

No. of females: Adult: 500

Availability:

Yes

200

Lamb:

Contact: Mr. Peter Lawson

Source of rams:

Own, USA Semi-intensive Housing:

Lambing interval: 8 mo.

Flock size:

Increasing

Usage:

Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness,

maternal ability, flocking instinct, wool quality.

**Breed: Polypay** 

No. of males: Adult:

No. of females: Adult:

**Contact: M. Robert Tremblay** 

Source of rams:

Other breeders

Housing:

Conventional

Lambing interval: 8 mo.

Usage: Meat Merits: Superior productivity.

**Breed: Rambouillet** 

Contact: Keith & Kathy Alexander

2 No. of males: Adult:

Other breeders, ROP, USA Source of rams:

Lamb: 1 No. of females: Adult: 46 Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 8 mo.

Lamb: 16 Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, wool

Availability: Yes

Merits: Low maintenance, year-round lambing, hardiness, flocking instinct, wool quality.

**Breed: Rambouillet** 

**Contact: Fred & Marlene Brettell** 

**CLRC** Registered: 2 No. of males: Adult: 6 Lamb: No. of females: Adult: 15

Other breeders, ROP, USA Source of rams: Breeder flock:

Yes

Housing: Conventional Flock size: Same

Lamb: 6 Usage: Meat, wool Merits: Maternal ability, flocking instinct, wool quality.

Notes: 17 registered.

**Breed: Rambouillet** 

Contact: Mr. Hubert Earl

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Adult: 1

ROP Source of rams: Conventional Housing:

Lamb: 1 No. of females: Adult: 12 Lambing interval: 12 mo. Increasing Flock size:

Lamb:

Usage: Meat, wool, breeding

Availability: No Notes: 2 régistered.; Breed kept for Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

crossbreeding with Dorset; Will be increasing to 35 ewes and purchasing a nucleus flock of

year-round lambing, hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct, wool quality.

old-fashioned Shropshire.

**Breed: Rambouillet** 

Contact: Mr. Brian Hawk

American Sheep Association Registered: No. of males: Adult:

Own, other breeders, USA Source of rams: Breeder flock: Yes

13 Lamb:

Conventional Housing:

No. of females: Adult: 110 Lamb: 20

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Meat, wool Usage:

Availability: No Notes: 30 registered.

Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness, wool quality.

**Breed: Rambouillet** 

Contact: Mr. John Kirk

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Adult: Source of rams: Own, ROP, USA

No. of females: Adult: 216 44

Breeder flock: Yes Conventional Housing:

Lamb: Availability: Notes: 113 registered.

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, flocking instinct, wool quality, lamb unassisted, carcass desired by American

market.

**Breed: Rambouillet** 

No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 12

Yes Availability:

Contact: Mr. Keith Lamont

Own, other breeders Source of rams: Semi-intensive Housing:

Increasing Flock size:

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct, wool quality.

**Breed: Rambouillet** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Lamb: No. of females: Adult: Availability: No

Contact: Stephen & Annajane Lawrie

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Conventional Housing:

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Meat, wool, show, size Usage:

Merits: Year-round lambing, hardiness, maternal

ability, wool quality.

**Breed: Rambouillet** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: 14 Lamb: 6

100 No. of females: Adult:

Lamb: 30

Availability: Yes Notes: 150 registered. **Contact: Olds College** 

Own, ROP Source of rams: Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, wool, show

Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness, maternal ability,

flocking instinct, wool quality.

**Breed: Rambouillet** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: 70 No. of females: Adult:

Lamb: 30

Availability: Yes

Health status: Vaccinated, blood tested for

Johnes, Maedi Visna

Contact: Mr. Wendell Palmer

Own, other breeders Source of rams:

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 8 mo.

Flock size: Decreasing

Meat, wool, show Usage:

Merits: Low maintenance, year-round lambing, hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct, wool

quality, handling ease.

**Breed: Rambouillet** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Adult: 2 Lamb: 6

No. of females: Adult: 13 Lamb:

Availability: No

Notes: 17 registered.

Contact: David & Silk Questo

Source of rams: Own Breeder flock: Yes

Semi-intensive Housing:

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Superior productivity, maternal ability, flocking

instinct, wool quality.

Breed : Rambouillet Contact: Sassi Sandy Acres Sheep Stud Inc.

No. of males: Adult: 12 Source of rams: Own, ROP, USA

Lamb: 17 Breeder flock: Yes

No. of females: Adult: 15 Housing: Conventional Lamb: 20 Lambing interval: 8-12 mo.

Availability: Yes Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, year-round lambing,

hardiness, flocking instinct, wool quality.

Breed : Rambouillet Contact: Jo & David Sleigh

Registered: CLRC Source of rams: Alberta No. of males: Adult: 1 Breeder flock: Yes

No. of females: Adult: 2 Housing: Conventional

Lamb: 2 Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Availability: Yes Flock size: Same

Breed : Rideau Arcott Contact: Dwayne Acres

Registered: CLRC Source of rams: Own, other breeders

No. of males: Adult: 1 Breeder flock: Yes

No. of females: Adult: 2 Housing: Conventional

Availability: Yes Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Increasing
Usage: Meat, wool
Merits: Year-round lambing.

Breed : Rideau Arcott Contact: H. & C. Boettcher

Registered: CLRC Source of rams: Own, other breeders

No. of males: Adult: 2 Housing: Conventional Lamb: 2 Lambing interval: 8 mo.

No. of females: Adult: 28 Flock size: Increasing Lamb: 28 Usage: Meat, wool

Availability: No Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

Notes: 28 registered. year-round lambing, maternal ability.

Breed : Rideau Arcott Contact: Dr. Brian Buckrell

No. of males: Adult: 15 Source of rams: Own

Lamb: 75 Housing: Semi-intensive

No. of females: Adult: 110 Lambing interval: 7 mo.

Lamb: 75 Flock size: Same

Availability: No Usage: Research

Availability: No Usage: Research Merits: Superior productivity, year-round lambing.

**Breed: Rideau Arcott** 

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Adult: 2 No. of females: Adult: 20

Availability: Yes

Contact: Thomas & Joan Dales

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, breeding

Merits: Superior productivity, meat quality,

crossbreeding.

**Breed: Rideau Arcott** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 4
Lamb: 11

No. of females: Adult: 50

Availability: Yes

Lamb:

Contact: Mr. Darryl Diemert

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 8 mo.
Flock size: Increasing
Usage: Meat, milk

Merits: Superior productivity, year-round lambing,

maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Rideau Arcott** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 6
No. of females: Adult: 50

Lamb: Availability: No.

Availability: No Notes: 86 registered.

**Contact: Olds College** 

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Increasing
Usage: Meat, milk

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

year-round lambing, maternal ability.

**Breed: Rideau Arcott** 

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Adult: 3

Lamb: 5

30

No. of females: Adult: 13

Lamb: 8

Availability: Yes

Health status: Tested for Maedi Visna

Contact: Mr. Wendell Palmer

Source of rams: Other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Superior productivity, year-round lambing,

maternal ability, handling ease.

**Breed: Rideau Arcott** 

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Adult: 2

Lamb: 3

No. of females: Adult: 12

Lamb: 12

Availability: Yes

Notes: 12 registered.

Contact: Mrs. Jacqueline Schram

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, show, breeding

Merits: Superior productivity, year-round lambing,

maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Romanov** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 3
No. of females: Adult: 10

Lamb:

8

Availability: Yes

Contact: Mr. John Anderson

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock: Ye

Housing: Conventional/semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Increa

Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat

Merits: Superior productivity, year-round lambing,

hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct,

crossbreeding.

**Breed: Romanov** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 1
Availability: No

Notes: One registered; Breed kept for

crossbreeding. Intend to expand to 50 ewes.

Contact: M. Paul E. Barbeau

Source of rams: ROP
Housing: Intensive
Flock size: Same
Usage: Breeding

Merits: Prolificacy, out of season breeding, rustic.

**Breed: Romanov** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: 4

Lamb: 4 No. of females: Adult: 60

Availability: Yes

Notes: Source of ram from other breeders in

Que. and N.B.

**Contact: Pierre Fournier & Mona Beaudoin** 

Source of rams: Own, other breeders, ROP

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 8 mo.
Flock size: Increasing
Usage: Breeding

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness,

maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Romanov** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 1
Availability: No

Notes: 3 registered.

Contact: Mr. Kenneth Brock

Source of rams: Other breeders Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Increasing
Usage: Meat

Merits: Maternal ability.

**Breed: Romanov** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 2
No. of females: Adult: 3
Availability: Yes

Contact: Ian & Valerie Bush

Source of rams: Other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 6 mo.
Flock size: Decreasing
Usage: Breeding

Merits: Easy to keep, lambing ease.

**Breed: Romanov** 

**CLRC** Registered: Adult: 10 No. of males: Lamb: 10

290 No. of females: Adult: 70 Lamb:

Notes: 306 registered.

**Breed: Romanov** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Adult: 11

Lamb: 2 No. of females: Adult:

125 15 Lamb:

Yes Availability: Notes: 93 registered.

**Breed: Romanov** 

No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 300

Yes Availability:

**Breed: Romanov** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: 2 No. of females: Adult: Availability: Yes

Notes: 4 registered; Breed kept for

crossbreeding.

**Breed: Romanov** 

No. of females: Adult: 30

Availability: Yes Contact: Ferme Mou-Vac Inc.

Source of rams: Europe Breeder flock: Yes Intensive Housing: Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, other

Merits: Superior productivity, disease resistance,

hardiness, maternal ability.

Contact: Mme. Gilberte Chassé

Own, other breeders Source of rams:

Housing: Intensive Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Increasing Breeding Usage:

Merits: Superior productivity, disease resistance,

year-round lambing, maternal ability.

Contact: T. Makowecki & K. Frank

Source of rams: Own Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Increasing Meat, breeding

Merits: Superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness, maternal ability,

flocking instinct.

Contact: Tim & Jean Hamm

Own, other breeders Source of rams:

Conventional Housing: Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Decreasing Usage: Meat, breeding

Merits: Year-round lambing, maternal ability, flocking

instinct.

Contact: Mr. Terence Hunter

Intensive Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat

Merits: Superior productivity, year-round lambing.

**Breed: Romanov** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 10

Notes: 11 registered.

**Breed: Romanov** 

Contact: M. Réal Jacques

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Semi-intensive Flock size: Decreasing Usage:

Meat Merits: Prolificacy, small lambs, easy lambing.

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 12

Notes: 13 registered.

ROP Source of rams: Breeder flock: Yes

Contact: M. Joseph Lagarde

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Good for crossbreeding, prolificacy.

**Breed: Romanov** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 35

Availability: Yes

Notes: Breed kept for crossbreeding.

**Contact: Locham Brae Farm** 

Other breeders (all over Canada) Source of rams: Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Flock size:

Same Usage: Meat, wool, show, breeding

Intensive

**Breed: Romanov** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: Availability: Yes

Contact: Dennis & Louise McBurney

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Decreasing

Flock size: Meat Usage:

Merits: Superior productivity, year-round lambing,

maternal ability.

**Breed: Romanov** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Lamb: 1 No. of females: Adult: 11

Availability: No

Notes: Breed kept for producing F1 ewe lambs for sale to commercial flocks.

**Contact: David & Nancy Pease** 

Source of rams: Original Agr. Canada

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, breeding

Merits: Superior productivity, maternal abililty, flocking instinct, disease resistance, hardiness.

**Breed: Romanov** 

**CLRC** Registered:

No. of males: Adult: Lamb:

4 No. of females: Adult: 33

Lamb: No Availability:

Notes: 3 registered; the rest are in process of

being registered.

15

No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 30

Availability:

**Breed: Romanov** 

Lamb: 6

No

**Breed: Romanov** 

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 20 18

Lamb:

Availability: Yes

**Breed: Romanov** 

No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 160

Availability:

Notes: Breed kept for crossbreeding.

Contact: Dr. J.G. Proulx

Own, ROP Source of rams: Breeder flock: Yes Housing: Intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Research

Merits: Superior productivity, year-round lambing,

hardiness, maternal ability.

Contact: Mr. Paul Saunders

Source of rams: Own

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Breeding Usage: Merits: Superior productivity.

Contact: Mrs. Jacqueline Schram

Own, other breeders Source of rams:

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Same

Meat, fur, breeding

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness,

maternal ability, flocking instinct.

Contact: Mr. Dana Vader

Source of rams: Breeder flock:

Housing: Yes

Intensive Lambing interval: 8 mo. or less Flock size: Increasing Breeding Usage:

Merits: Superior productivity, maternal ability,

Own

Yes

year-round lambing, low maintenance.

**Breed: Romney** 

No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult:

Availability: Yes Contact: Keith & Kathy Alexander

Own Source of rams:

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Disease resistance, hardiness, maternal ability,

wool quality.

**Breed: Romney** 

No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 10

Availability: Yes

Contact: Mrs. Laura Bennett

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Meat, wool, breeding Usage:

Merits: Low maintenance, maternal ability, wool

quality.

**Breed: Romney** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: Availability: No Notes: 10 registered.

Contact: Bohn's Charolais

Source of rams: Other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, disease resistance, hardiness,

maternal ability, flocking instinct, wool quality.

**Breed: Romney** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: 2 Lamb: 1

No. of females: Adult:

Lamb:

Availability: Notes: 15 registered. **Contact: Miss Shirley Byrnes** 

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat, wool Merits: Hardiness, wool quality.

**Breed: Romney** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: Availability: Yes Notes: 7 registered.

Contact: Bill & Judy Currie

Other breeders Source of rams: Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, maternal ability, wool

quality.

**Breed: Romney** 

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: No. of females: Adult: 10

Lamb: Availability: Yes

Contact: Mrs. Mary Grant

Source of rams: USA Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Maternal ability, wool quality.

**Breed: Romney** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 1
No. of females: Adult: 10

**Contact: Cory & Monica Lambert** 

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, disease resistance, maternal

ability, flocking instinct, wool quality.

**Breed: Romney** 

No. of males: Adult: 1 Availability: No Contact: Mr. Otto Lehmann

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Semi-intensive Breeding

**Breed: Romney** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 1
No. of females: Adult: 4
Availability: No
Notes: 4 registered.

Contact: Mr. Larry McGillivray

Source of rams: Own, other breeders Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Same
Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, wool quality.

**Breed: Romney** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 2
Lamb: 3
No. of females: Adult: 45

Lamb: 6

Availability: Yes

Contact: Jo & David Sleigh

Source of rams: Own, ROP, USA

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Flock size: Same
Usage: Meat, wool, show, breeding

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, hardiness, maternal ability, wool

quality.

**Breed: Romney** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 5
Lamb: 2

No. of females: Adult: 86 Lamb: 30

Availability: Yes

Notes: Had 99 lambs born in the spring, may register 25-30 more ewe lambs and 2-3 more ram lambs.

**Contact: Linda Swaine** 

Source of rams: Own, USA, NZ Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mg

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, wool, pelts

Merits: Beautiful faces, medium size, handling ease,

dual purpose.

**Breed: Romney** 

Contact: Mr. Jan Tuytel

Registered: **CLRC** Source of rams:

Housing: No. of males: Adult: Conventional 2 Lambing interval: 12 mo. Lamb:  $\frac{1}{2}$ Increasing No. of females: Adult: Flock size:

Lamb: Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness, maternal ability, Availability: Yes

Notes: Coloured sheep. wool quality.

**Breed: Romney** 

Contact: Mr. Jan Tuytel **CLRC** Source of rams: Own Registered:

Housing: No. of males: 2 Conventional Adult:

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Lamb: Flock size: No. of females: Adult: 24 Same Usage: Lamb: 12 Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness, maternal ability, Availability: Yes

Contact: Mr. Jim Barclay

Contact: Mr. James G. Clark

Notes: White sheep. wool quality.

**Breed: Scottish Blackface** 

Registered: Scottish Blackface Sheep Source of rams: Own, other breeders, USA

Breeders Assoc.

Housing: Conventional No. of males: Lambing interval: 12 mo. Adult:

Lamb: Flock size: Same Usage: No. of females: Adult: 14

Meat, wool, breeding, horns Merits: Low maintenance, disease resistance, hardiness, Lamb:

Availability: Yes maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Scottish Blackface** 

No. of males: Adult: Source of rams: Own No. of females: Adult: 6 Breeder flock: Yes

Availability: Yes Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Notes: Not registered. Flock size: Same

Usage: Training Border Collies

Merits: Hardiness.

**Breed: Shetland** 

Contact: Jean & Peter Flett

N.A. Shetland Sheep Assoc. Source of rams: Own Registered: Breeder flock: Yes No. of males: Adult:

Housing: No. of females: Adult: Conventional 13

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Availability: Flock size: Same Usage: Wool

Merits: Superior productivity, wool quality.

**Breed: Shropshire** 

No. of males: Lamb: No. of females: Adult: 3

Lamb: 1 Contact: Mrs. Muriel Burnett

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Superior productivity, hardiness, maternal

ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Shropshire** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

Adult: No. of males: 1 Lamb: No. of females: Adult: 14

> Lamb: 5

Availability: Yes Contact: Ms. Susan Burnett

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

hardiness, maternal ability.

**Breed: Shropshire** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 36

Lamb:

Availability: Yes Contact: Crawford, Miles & Degasparro

Own, USA Source of rams:

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Decreasing Meat, show Usage:

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

disease resistance, hardiness, maternal ability, flocking

Other breeders

instinct.

**Breed: Shropshire** 

Registered: No. of males: Adult:

No. of females: Adult:

3 Lamb:

Availability: No

Notes: 12 registered; Want to keep the breed

going. Ewes originally from McNeil flock in Windsor, Nova Scotia. Ram imported from

USA every 3 yrs. or so.

Contact: Mr. William Draper

Source of rams: USA

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat, wool

**Breed: Shropshire** Contact: Tom & Magda Hutchinson

Source of rams: Registered: CLRC

Breeder flock: Yes 7 No. of males: Adult:

Housing: Conventional Lamb: 5

Lambing interval: 12 mo. No. of females: Adult: 6 Increasing Flock size: Lamb:

Usage: Meat, wool Availability: Yes Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness, wool quality, Notes: 12 registered.

market lamb quality.

**Breed: Shropshire** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

Adult: No. of males: 6

Lamb: No. of females: Adult: 29

Lamb: Yes

Availability: Notes: 45 registered.

**Breed: Shropshire** 

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Adult: 2

Lamb: No. of females: Adult: 17

Lamb: 11

Availability: Yes

**Breed: Shropshire** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

No. of males: Adult: 8

Lamb:

15

3

No. of females: Adult: 11

Lamb:

Availability: Yes

**Breed: Shropshire** 

Registered:

No. of males: Adult:

No. of females: Adult:

Notes: 17 registered.

Contact: Mr. David Mastine

Source of rams: Own, USA

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, wool, show

Merits: Low maintenance, maternal ability.

Contact: Mrs. Jackie Medd

Source of rams: Own, other breeders, USA

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Low maintenance, disease resistance, hardiness,

maternal ability.

Contact: Mr. Douglas Morrison

Source of rams: Own, USA

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Same Flock size:

Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness, maternal ability,

flocking instinct, wool quality.

Contact: Kenneth & Keith Salmon

Source of rams:

Own, other breeders

Housing:

Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Same

Flock size: Usage:

Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness, maternal ability,

wool quality.

**Breed: Southdown** 

No. of females: Adult:

**Contact: Lisa Anne Alderson** 

Source of rams:

Other breeders Conventional

Housing: Flock size:

Increasing

Usage:

Meat

Merits: Maternal ability.

**Breed: Southdown** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: 2 No. of females: Adult: 14

Availability: Yes

Contact: Hugh & Susan Bignell

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Usage:

Increasing Meat, show

Merits: Low maintenance, maternal ability.

**Breed: Southdown** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of females: Adult: 3
Availability: No

Contact: Ted & Alison Bowman

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Decreasing

Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, maternal ability.

**Breed: Southdown** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: 1 Availability: No Contact: Sheep's Kin Farm

Source of rams: Other breeders
Housing: Semi-intensive

Flock size: Usage: Same Meat

**Breed: Southdown** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 1
Lamb: 2

No. of females: Adult: 27

Lamb: Availability: Yes

Availability: Yes Notes: 30 registered; Breed

Notes: 30 registered; Breed kept for improving meat quality by crossbreeding.

Contact: Mr. Malcolm Brown

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, wool, show, breeding Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

disease resistance, hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct, wool quality.

**Breed: Southdown** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 5
Lamb: 3

No. of females: Adult: 22 Lamb: 5

Availability: Yes

Contact: Crawford, Miles & Degasparro

Source of rams: Own, USA

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, show
Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

disease resistance, hardiness, maternal ability, flocking

instinct.

Breed: Southdown

Registered: **CLRC** 

No. of males: Adult: Lamb:

1 No. of females: Adult: 8

Lamb:

Availability: Yes

**Breed: Southdown** 

CLRC Registered: Adult: No. of males:

2 2 Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 18

Lamb:

Availability: Yes

**Breed: Southdown** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

15 No. of females: Adult:

Lamb:

Availability: Yes Notes: 21 registered.

**Breed: Southdown** 

No. of males: Adult:

8 Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 47

Lamb: 14

Availability: Yes

**Breed: Southdown** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult:

Lamb:

Yes Availability: Notes: 17 registered. Contact: Mr. Marc Degasparro

Own, USA Source of rams:

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

disease resistance, hardiness, maternal ability, flocking

instinct.

Contact: Mr. Keith Etsell

Own, other breeders Source of rams:

Yes Breeder flock:

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness, flocking instinct.

Contact: F. Adams & Sons

Own, other breeders Source of rams:

Housing: Conventional Increasing Flock size:

Meat, wool, show Usage:

Merits: Low maintenance.

Contact: Mr. W.E. Gates & Son

Source of rams: Own, USA, other breeders.

Breeder flock:

Conventional Housing:

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Same Flock size:

Usage: Meat, wool, show

Merits: Low maintenance, disease resistance, hardiness,

maternal ability.

Contact: Mrs. Jenny Jackson

Own, other breeders, USA Source of rams:

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: **Increasing** 

Meat, wool, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, hardiness, maternal ability, wool

quality.

Breed: Southdown

Registered: CLRC Adult: No. of males:

Lamb: No. of females: Adult: 11 Lamb:

Availability: Yes Notes: 13 registered.

**Breed: Southdown** 

Registered: No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 1 Lamb:

Availability: No Notes: 7 registered.

**Breed: Southdown** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Adult: Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 11 Lamb:

Notes: 20 registered.

**Breed: Southdown** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: Lamb: No. of females: Lamb: Availability: Yes

Notes: 9 registered.

**Breed: Southdown** 

CLRC Registered: No. of males: Adult: Lamb: No. of females: Adult: 40

Lamb: 11

Availability: Yes Contact: Mr. Neil Joiner

Own, other breeders, imported Source of rams:

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Meat, show Usage:

Merits: Low maintenance, maternal ability, flocking

instinct.

Contact: Stephen & Annajane Lawrie

Own, other breeders, USA Source of rams:

Breeder flock:

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Increasing Flock size: Meat, show Usage:

Merits: Maternal ability, temperament.

Contact: Leeann Lewis

Source of rams: Own, other breeders, USA

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size:

Increasing Meat, show Usage:

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

maternal ability, flocking instinct.

Contact: Mr. Anthony Locke

Other breeders Source of rams:

Breeder flock: Yes Housing: Intensive Lambing interval: 12 mo. Increasing Flock size:

Meat, show, breeding Usage:

Merits: Low maintenance, maternal ability, flocking

instinct.

Contact: Mr. Wray Marshall

Other breeders Source of rams:

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness.

**Breed: Southdown** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 8 2

Lamb:

Availability: Yes Contact: John & Patricia Morris

Own, other breeders Source of rams:

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Decreasing

Meat, wool, hides, show Usage: Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

handling ease.

**Breed: Southdown** 

No. of females: Adult: 2 Availability: No

**Contact: Mrs. Heather Olney** 

Housing:

Conventional

Flock size: Usage:

Same Pets

**Breed: Southdown** 

No. of males: Adult: 25 No. of females: Adult:

Availability: No

Contact: Puck's Farm

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional Flock size: Decreasing Meat, wool, show

Usage:

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

maternal ability, wool quality.

**Breed: Southdown** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 12

Lamb: 8

Availability: Yes Contact: Mrs. K.A. Stewart

Other breeders, ROP Source of rams: Conventional

Housing: Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Low maintenance, maternal ability, flocking

instinct.

**Breed: Southdown** 

No. of males: Lamb: No. of females: Adult: 12

Lamb:

Availability: Yes Contact: T.A. & S.P. Thorne

Own, USA Source of rams:

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Decreasing

Meat, show, breeding Usage:

Merits: Low maintenance.

Breed: Southdown

No. of males: Adult: 13 No. of females: Adult:

Availability: Yes Contact: W. & N. Weatherstone

LISA Source of rams:

Conventional Housing:

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Meat, wool, show Usage:

Merits: Superior productivity.

**Breed: St. Croix** 

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

8 No. of females: Adult:

Lamb: 1

Availability: Yes

Notes: Registered with St. Croix Sheep

Breeders Assn. Inc.

Contact: Mrs. Valerie Ames

Source of rams: Own, USA

Breeder flock: Yes

Conventional Housing:

Lambing interval: 8 mo.

Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, milk

Merits: Low maintenance, resistance to disease, maternal ability, flocking instinct, lack of wool.

Breed: Suffolk

**CLRC** Registered:

No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 34

Availability: Yes

Notes: 34 registered.

Contact: Kory & Ove Aasen

Source of rams: ROP

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Decreasing Meat, show Usage: Merits: Common in the area.

Breed: Suffolk

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 24

Lamb:

Availability: Yes **Contact: Dwayne Acres** 

Other breeders, ROP Source of rams:

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Same Flock size: Usage: Meat

Merits: Growth rate.

Breed: Suffolk

No. of males: Lamb: No. of females: Adult: 120

Lamb:

Availability: No Contact: Mr. Pearson Agard

Other breeders, ROP Source of rams:

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Increasing Flock size: Meat, wool Usage:

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

hardiness.

Breed: Suffolk

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: 54 No. of females: Adult:

Availability: Yes

Lamb: 53

**Breed: Suffolk** 

No. of males: Adult: 2 Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 75 Lamb: 15

Availability:

**Breed: Suffolk** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Adult: 2

Lamb: 25 No. of females: Adult:

Lamb:

Availability: Yes

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 15

Yes Availability:

Contact: Alex Thiel & Sons

Own, ROP Source of rams:

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Increasing Flock size: Meat, wool Usage:

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, resistance to disease, flocking instinct, hardiness.

Contact: Mr. Greg Alexander

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Meat Usage:

Merits: Superior productivity, maternal ability.

**Contact: Mrs. Betty Alexandre** 

Own, other breeders Source of rams:

Conventional Housing: Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Meat, show, breeding Usage:

Merits: Superior productivity, hardiness.

Contact: Mrs. Valerie Ames

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Meat Usage:

Merits: Superior productivity, hardiness.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Lamb: No. of females: Adult:

Availability: Notes: 26 registered. Contact: Mr. Thomas Anderson

Own, ROP Source of rams: Conventional Housing:

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Same Flock size: Meat Usage:

Merits: Hardiness.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

No. of males: Adult: 4 No. of females: Adult: 12

Availability: Yes

Contact: Ed & Linda Barnett

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Same
Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Size.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 1
No. of females: Adult: 8
Availability: Yes

Contact: Patrick & Celene Bateman

Source of rams: ROP Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Decreasing Usage: Meat

Merits: Year-round lambing, hardiness.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 3
No. of females: Adult: 21
Notes: 23 registered.

Contact: Mr. Clare Bauman

Source of rams: USA Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Storage of semen/embryos: 19 doses of semen (1 ram)

Usage: Meat

Merits: Superior productivity, hardiness, maternal

ability.

Breed: Suffolk

No. of males: Adult: 1

Lamb: 3

No. of females: Adult: 12

Lamb: 2

Availability: Yes

Notes: Flock with the same breeder for 61

years.

Contact: Lance & Marg Beath

Source of rams: USA

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Superior productivity, maternal ability.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

No. of females: Adult:

**Contact: Miss Margaret Bell** 

Housing: Conventional Flock size: Decreasing

Breed: Suffolk

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 48

Lamb: 12

No Availability:

Notes: 67 registered.

Contact: Bergerie Sauvé-Laurin

Source of rams: Other breeders, USA

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Superior productivity, maternal ability.

Breed: Suffolk

Registered: **CLRC** 

No. of males: Adult: 1

Lamb: 1

No. of females: Adult: 3

Lamb:

Availability: Yes

Notes: Breed kept for crossbreeding with

Border Leicester.

Contact: Mrs. Judy Bergman

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 10 mo.

Increasing Flock size:

Meat, wool, breeding Usage:

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity (meat),

maternal ability, wool quality.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

**CLRC** Registered:

No. of males: Lamb: No. of females: Adult:

20 Lamb:

Yes

Availability: Notes: 25 registered. Contact: Ferme Berarc Inc.

ROP Source of rams:

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Same Breeding Usage:

Merits: Maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

**CLRC** Registered:

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: 1

No. of females: Adult: 21 Lamb: 5

Availability: Yes Contact: Dr. E. Black

Source of rams: Own, ROP Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, meat quality, growth rate.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

28 No. of females: Adult:

Lamb: 12

Availability: Notes: 44 registered. Contact: Barb & Harvey Black

Source of rams: Own, other breeders, ROP

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, breeding Merits: Hardiness, maternal ability.

Breed: Suffolk

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: 4 No. of females: Adult: 60

Availability: Yes

Contact: Mrs. Jean Blier

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Decreasing

Usage: Meat, wool, breeding

Merits: Superior productivity, hardiness, maternal

ability.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: 2

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 21

Lamb: 2

Availability: Yes Notes: 35 registered.

Contact: Don & Sandra Blishen

Source of rams: Other breeders, USA

Breeder flock: Yes
Housing: Intensive
Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, breeding

Merits: Superior productivity, hardiness, maternal

ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 4
No. of females: Adult: 50
Availability: Yes
Notes: 50 registered.

Contact: H. & C. Boettcher

Source of rams: Own
Housing: Conventional
Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Decreasing

Usage: Meat

Merits: Superior productivity, maternal ability.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 1
No. of females: Adult: 5
Availability: No

Contact: Dr. Réjean Bouchard

Source of rams: Other breeders Conventional

Flock size: Same Usage: Show

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 1
No. of females: Adult: 6

Contact: Mr. Don Bowering

Source of rams: ROP

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Superior productivity, maternal ability, flocking

instinct.

Breed: Suffolk

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 11

Availability:

Contact: Mr. Osten Brannstrom

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Superior productivity, maternal ability, flocking

instinct.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

CLRC Registered: No. of males: Adult: 20 Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 30 18

Lamb: Availability: Yes

Notes: 32 registered.

**Contact: Fred & Marlene Brettell** 

Other breeders, USA Source of rams:

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Increasing Flock size: Meat, show Usage:

Merits: Superior productivity, hardiness, maternal

ability.

Breed: Suffolk

**CLRC** Registered: No. of females: Adult: 16 Availability: No Notes: 3 registered.

Contact: Mr. Kenneth Brock

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Superior productivity.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: Lamb:

13 No. of females: Adult: 12 Lamb: 11

Availability: Yes Notes: 12 registered. **Contact: Mrs. Dorothy Brooks** 

Source of rams: Other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Conventional Housing:

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Meat, wool, show Usage:

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

maternal ability.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of females: Adult: 2

Availability: No Contact: Sheep's Kin Farm

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Semi-intensive

Flock size: Usage:

Same Meat

Breed : Suffolk Contact: Mr. Daniel Bruce

Registered: CLRC Source of rams: Own, other breeders

No. of males: Adult: 1 Housing: Conventional Lamb: 1 Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Lamb: 1 Lambing interval: 12 mo.

No. of females: Adult: 3 Flock size: Increasing
Lamb: 1 Usage: Meat

Availability: Yes Merits: Superior productivity.

Breed : Suffolk Contact: Mr. Carl Bryson

No. of males: Adult: 1 Source of rams: ROP

Lamb: 1 Housing: Conventional

No. of females: Adult: 28 Lambing interval: 12 mo. Lamb: 6 Flock size: Same

Availability: No Usage: Meat, wool, milk

Merits: Hardiness.

Breed : Suffolk Contact: Mr. J.K. Campbell

Registered: CLRC Source of rams: Other breeders No. of males: Lamb: 2 Housing: Conventional

No. of females: Adult: 14 Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Lamb: 7 Flock size: Same

Availability: Yes Usage: Meat

Merits: Superior productivity.

Breed : Suffolk Contact: Mr. John Carnaghan

No. of males: Adult: 1
Lamb: 1

No. of females: Adult: 35

No. of females: Adult: 35

No. of females: Adult: 35

Housing: Conventional

Availability: No Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Disease resistance, hardiness, maternal ability.

Breed : Suffolk Contact: Mr. G.B. Carter

No. of males: Adult: 1 Source of rams: Own Lamb: 2 Breeder flock: Yes

No. of females: Adult: 15 Housing: Conventional

Lamb: 4 Lambing interval: 12 mo. Availability: Yes Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, wool, show, breeding
Merits: Superior productivity, maternal ability, wool

quality.

Breed: Suffolk

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: 1 No. of females: Adult: 25

Availability: Yes Notes: 26 registered.

Contact: G.B. & W.M. Crow

Source of rams: Other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Same
Usage: Meat
Merits: Superior productivity.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: CLRC No. of females: Adult: 23

Availability: No

Contact: Marshall & Bev Cullen

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, hobby.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 5
No. of females: Adult: 55

Availability: Yes

Notes: Crossbreeding with Arcotts.

Contact: Thomas & Joan Dales

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, breeding

Merits: Superior productivity, meat quality.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult:

No. of females: Adult: 35 Lamb: 13

Lamb: Availability: Yes Notes: 40 registered.

Contact: M. Jean-Guy Deblois

Source of rams: USA

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Decreasing Usage: Meat, show Merits: Superior productivity.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: 4

No. of females: Adult: 18

Lamb:

Availability: Yes Notes: 19 registered.

Contact: Mr. John Deweyert

Source of rams: Other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, wool, show

Merits: Superior productivity, maternal ability, wool

quality.

Breed: Suffolk

Registered: CLRC No. of females: Adult: 4

Availability: No Notes: 4 registered.

Contact: Mr. Alex Dixon

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness, maternal ability.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 2
Lamb: 4

No. of females: Adult: 45 Lamb: 15

Availability: Yes

Contact: Mr. William Duffield

Source of rams: Own, ROP, USA Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Same
Usage: Meat
Merits: Superior productivity.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 1
No. of females: Adult: 15

Availability: No

Contact: Mr. Frank Dyer

Source of rams: ROP

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Same
Usage: Meat
Merits: Superior productivity.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

No. of males: Adult: 1 No. of females: Adult: 34 Lamb: 6

Availability: Yes

Notes: Has crosses of Dorset, Romanov and

Texel breeds.

Contact: Ferme Bergerac Enr.

Source of rams: Own, ROP, USA

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Merits: Carcass quality, production of crossbred

animals.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 6
Lamb: 12

No. of females: Adult: 56 Lamb: 26

Availability: Yes

Notes: 77 registered; Breed kept for

crossbreeding.

Contact: Les Fermes G.M.P. Enr.

Source of rams: Other breeders, ROP

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional
Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Increasing
Usage: Meat, breeding

Merits: Superior productivity, hardiness, maternal

ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed**: Suffolk

**CLRC** Registered: Adult: No. of males:

Lamb: No. of females: Adult: 78 25

Lamb:

Availability:

Contact: Mr. Ian Forrest

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat

**Breed: Suffolk** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: 37 No. of females: Adult: Lamb: 17

Availability: Yes

Contact: Chester & Rilla Fowler

Source of rams: Own, other breeders Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 8-12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, show, breeding

Merits: Superior productivity.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

CLRC Registered: No. of males: Adult:

No. of females: Adult:

3

10

Contact: Mr. Robert Fowler

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Decreasing Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult:

No. of females: Adult: 35 10

Lamb:

Availability: Yes Notes: 20 registered. Contact: Mrs. Gail Freeman

Source of rams: ROP

Semi-intensive Housing:

8 mo. Lambing interval: Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Superior productivity, size, hybrid vigour of F1

**Breed: Suffolk** 

**CLRC** Registered:

No. of males: Adult: 2

Lamb: 13 No. of females: Adult: 57

18

Lamb: Availability: Notes: 50 registered.

Contact: Rémi Gelinas

Source of rams: Own, other breeders, USA

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Show

Merits: Rustic, breeding.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

No. of females: Adult: 7

Availability: Yes

Contact: Mr. Robert Gibbons

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Decreasing
Usage: Meat
Merits: Superior productivity.

Breed: Suffolk

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: 1

No. of females: Adult: 13 Lamb: 8

Availability: Yes
Notes: 10 registered.

**Contact: M. Claude Gingras** 

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat, breeding Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness,

maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 2
No. of females: Adult: 37

Availability: No

Contact: M. Joel Girard

Source of rams: USA
Breeder flock: Yes
Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Same
Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: 3

No. of females: Adult: 23

Lamb: 6

Availability: No Notes: 32 registered.

Contact: M. Robert Girard

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Same
Usage: Meat, show
Merits: Superior productivity.

Breed: Suffolk

Registered: CLRC

No. of males: Lamb: 30 No. of females: Adult: 90

Lamb: 35

Availability: Yes

Notes: 120 registered.

Contact: Glen G. Glaspell & Sons

Source of rams: Own, other breeders, ROP

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 6 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, show, breeding

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, year-round lambing, hardiness,

maternal ability, flocking instinct.

Breed: Suffolk

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult:

Lamb: 3

17

Availability: Yes Contact: Mrs. Sharon Goosen

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Decreasing

Flock size: Usage:

Meat

Breed: Suffolk

No. of females: Adult:

Availability: No

Contact: Don & Carol Jane Gray

Housing: Conventional

Merits: Superior productivity, maternal ability.

Breed: Suffolk

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 10

Lamb: 10

Availability: Yes

Notes: To export breeding stock.

Contact: Dr. E.A. Hall

Source of rams: USA

Breeder flock: Yes Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Same

Flock size:

Usage: Meat, breeding

Merits: Superior productivity, maternal ability.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 8

Lamb: 3

Availability: Yes

Notes: 13 registered.

Contact: R.J. Harvey

Source of rams: Own

Breeder flock:

Yes Conventional

Housing: Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size:

Increasing

Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

disease resistance, hardiness.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: **CLRC** 

No. of males: Lamb: No. of females: Adult: 32

Lamb: 14

Availability: Yes Notes: 46 registered. Contact: Mr. Dennis Hollyoake

Source of rams:

Other breeders Conventional

Housing:

Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size:

Same

Usage:

Meat, wool, show, breeding

Merits: Hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct.

Breed: Suffolk

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: 1 No. of females: Adult: 11

Lamb: 6

Availability: Yes

Contact: Mr. Darryl Hopkins

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, maternal ability, flocking instinct.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: CLRC No. of females: Adult: 10 Availability: No **Contact: Mr. LeRoy Houston** 

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity.

Breed : Suffolk

No. of males: Adult: 2

Lamb: 2

No. of females: Adult: 21

Lamb: 14

Availability: Yes

Contact: Mr. Gerald Hunter

Source of rams: Own, other breeders, USA

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Superior productivity, disease resistance,

hardiness.

Breed: Suffolk

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 1
Lamb: 5

No. of females: Adult: 60

Lamb: 16

Availability: Yes Notes: 60 registered.

**Contact: Huron Grove Farms** 

Source of rams: Other breeders
Housing: Conventional
Lambing interval: 8-12 mo.
Flock size: Same
Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Superior productivity, disease resistance,

hardiness, wool quality.

Breed: Suffolk

No. of males: Adult: 2

Lamb: 6

No. of females: Adult: 37

Lamb: 25

Availability: Yes

Contact: Mr. William Jeffray

Source of rams: Other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Superior productivity, disease resistance,

hardiness, maternal ability.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

**CLRC** Registered: Adult: 30 No. of males:

Lamb: 20

No. of females: Adult: 180 40

Lamb:

Availability: Yes

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: CLRC No. of females: Adult: 1 Lamb:

No Availability:

**Breed: Suffolk** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Lamb: No. of females: Adult: Availability:

Notes: 5 registered.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: 30 No. of females: Adult: Availability:

Breed: Suffolk

CLRC, SLA Registered: No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: Availability: Yes

Contact: Mr. Clarence Jones

Own, other breeders, USA Source of rams:

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Superior productivity, hardiness, maternal

ability.

Contact: Mr. Ian Kerr

Other breeders Source of rams: Conventional Housing:

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Decreasing Meat, show

Merits: Low maintenance, disease resistance, hardiness,

maternal ability.

Contact: Mr. Oliver Kingdon

Source of rams: Own Breeder flock: Yes Intensive Housing: Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Meat Usage:

Merits: Superior productivity, hardiness.

Contact: Mr. Keith Lamont

Source of rams: Own

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Decreasing Meat Usage: Merits: Superior productivity.

Contact: Mrs. Margit Lassen

Source of rams: **Imported** Breeder flock: Yes Housing: Intensive Lambing interval: 12 mo. Increasing Flock size: Meat, breeding Usage:

Merits: Meat quality, growth rate, productivity.

Breed: Suffolk

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 171 30

Lamb: Availability: Yes

Notes: 50 registered.

Contact: Mr. Anthony Locke

Source of rams: Other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes Housing: Intensit Lambing interval: 12 mo. Intensive Flock size: Increasing

Meat, show, breeding Usage: Merits: Superior productivity, hardiness.

Breed: Suffolk

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 20 Lamb:

Availability: No Notes: 7 registered. Contact: Mr. Kenneth MacKenzie

Source of rams: Other breeders, ROP Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Superior productivity, maternal ability.

Breed: Suffolk

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 70

Lamb: Availability: Yes

Notes: 15 registered; slatted floors in barn.

Contact: Mrs. Fran Macpherson

Source of rams: Own, other breeders, USA

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Decreasing Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Superior productivity, wool quality.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Adult: Lamb: No. of females: Adult: Lamb: 40

Availability: Yes Notes: 65 registered.

Contact: Mr. William Mactaggart

Source of rams: Own Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Decreasing Flock size:

Meat, show, breeding Usage:

Merits: Hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct.

Breed: Suffolk

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: Lamb:

9 No. of females: Adult: Lamb:

Availability: Yes **Contact: Brad & Victoria Manson** 

Source of rams: Own, Alberta Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing

Meat, wool, tanning hides, show Usage: Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

hardiness, maternal ability, flocking instinct.

Breed: Suffolk

No. of males: Adult: 1 No

Availability:

**Contact: Marchonique Ranch** 

Source of rams:

Housing:

Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size:

Same

Usage: Meat

Merits: Hardiness.

Breed: Suffolk

No. of males: Adult: Lamb: 6

No. of females: Adult: 60

Lamb: 34

Availability: Yes Contact: Mr. A.T. Matejka

Source of rams:

Other breeders Conventional

Housing: Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size:

Same

Meat, wool, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, hardiness, maternal ability, flocking

instinct.

Breed: Suffolk

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: 12

No. of females: Adult: 40 15

Lamb:

Availability:

Contact: Jean & Delbert McComb

Source of rams:

Other breeders

Housing:

Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size:

Decreasing

Usage:

Meat

Merits: Superior productivity.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult:

Availability: No

Notes: Breed kept for crossbreeding.

Contact: Mr. Don McKay

Source of rams:

Other breeders

Housing:

Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size:

Same

Usage: Breeding

Merits: Superior productivity, hardiness, maternal

ability.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: 1

No. of females: Adult: 42

Lamb: 36

Availability:

Contact: Mme. Colette Millier

Source of rams:

Own, ROP

Breeder flock:

Yes

Housing:

Conventional

Lambing interval:

8 mo.

Flock size:

Increasing Meat, show, breeding

Merits: Year-round lambing, maternal ability, wool

quality.

Breed : Suffolk

No. of males: Adult: 1 Lamb: 2

No. of females: Adult:

Adult: 4 Lamb: 3 Contact: M. Theo Montminy

Source of rams: Own Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Decreasing
Merits: Superior productivity.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 9
No. of females: Adult: 130
Availability: No

Availability: No Notes: 100 registered.

Contact: Orla & Elsa Nielsen

Source of rams: Own, ROP

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, breeding

Merits: Superior productivity, easy to shear, growth.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

No. of males: Adult: 8 No. of females: Adult: 60 Availability: No

Notes: Not registered.

Contact: Dr. W.M. Palmer

Source of rams: Own

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Superior productivity, hardiness.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult:

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 92

Lamb: lability: Yes

Availability: Yes Notes: 73 registered.

Contact: Mme. Solange Pettigrew

Source of rams: Own

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 8-12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 1
No. of females: Adult: 12

Availability: No Notes: 12 registered.

Contact: Mr. Douglas Pletsch

Source of rams: ROP Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Increasing
Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

hardiness, maternal ability.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: 9 No. of females: Adult: 63

Lamb: 7

Availability: No

Contact: Mr. John Poulos

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Superior productivity, disease resistance,

hardiness.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult: 1 Lamb: 1

No. of females: Adult: 7

**Contact: Charles & Grace Procter** 

Source of rams: Own, USA Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, hardiness, maternal ability.

Breed: Suffolk

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 8
Lamb: 5

No. of females: Adult: 66 Lamb: 35

Availability: No

Notes: 24 registered.

Contact: Dr. J.G. Proulx

Source of rams: Own, ROP
Breeder flock: Yes
Housing: Intensive
Lambing interval: 8 mo.
Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Research

Merits: Low maintenance, daily gain, carcass quality.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult:

Adult: 1 Lamb: 3

No. of females: Adult: 16

Lamb: 2

Availability: Yes

**Contact: Reichert Suffolks** 

Source of rams: Own, USA

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo

Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

disease resistance, hardiness.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: CLRC No. of males: Adult:

No. of females: Adult: 28 Lamb: 10 **Contact: Ro-onna Acres** 

Source of rams: Other breeders, ROP

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, hardiness, maternal ability, flocking

intinct.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

No. of males: Adult: 1 No. of females: Adult: 23

Lamb:

Availability: No

Contact: Mr. John Roney

Source of rams: Other breeders Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Decreasing
Usage: Meat

Merits: Superior productivity.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 1
No. of females: Adult: 40

Availability: No Notes: 1 registered.

Contact: Laurence & Kristi Roy

Source of rams: Other breeders Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: CLRC
No. of males: Adult: 1
No. of females: Adult: 6

Lamb: 1

Availability: Yes

**Contact: Russwood Claredale Farms** 

Source of rams: ROP Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat Merits: Superior productivity.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

No. of males: Adult: 2

Lamb: 13

No. of females: Adult: 8

Lamb: 12

Availability: Yes

Contact: Sassi Sandy Acres Sheep Stud Inc.

Source of rams: Own, other breeders, ROP

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo.
Flock size: Increasing

Usage: Meat

Merits: Superior productivity, maternal ability.

Breed: Suffolk

No. of males: Adult: 3 No. of females: Adult: 27

Lamb: 6

Availability: No

Contact: Mr. Paul Saunders

Source of rams: Other breeders
Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, breeding

Merits: Flocking instinct, carcass quality, market

demand.

Breed: Suffolk

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Adult: 1 No. of females: Adult: 10

Availability: Yes Contact: Mr. Bruce Sinclair

Source of rams: Other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Usage: Meat, show, breeding

Merits: Meat quality.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 20

Availability: Yes

Notes: 12 registered; Attempting to establish

a flock of easy lambing, shorter, prolific

Suffolks.

Contact: Lois & Harley Smith

Source of rams: Other breeders, ROP

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat

Merits: Superior productivity, maternal ability,

flocking instinct.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: No. of females: Adult: 18

Lamb: 5

Availability: Yes Contact: Mr. Kenneth Smith

Source of rams: Own, other breeders, USA

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, disease resistance, hardiness, maternal ability.

Breed: Suffolk

CLRC Registered: No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 50 20

Lamb: Availability: Yes

Notes: 74 registered.

Contact: Mrs. Marian Stephen

ROP Source of rams:

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Decreasing

Meat, breeding Usage: Merits: Superior productivity, maternal ability.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 40

Availability: Notes: 10 registered. Contact: Mr. Robert Still

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage:

Meat

Merits: Hardiness.

Breed: Suffolk

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult:

25 Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 63

Lamb: 26

Availability: Yes Notes: 68 registered. Contact: Mr. Walter Strand

Source of rams: Other breeders, ROP

Breeder flock: Yes

Semi-intensive Housing:

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Meat Usage:

Merits: Superior productivity, hardiness, maternal

ability, fast rate of gain, well muscled.

Breed: Suffolk

Registered: **CLRC** Adult: No. of males:

Notes: 42 registered.

2 Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 40 Availability: Yes

Contact: Mrs. Edith Stutzinger

Source of rams: Own Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Increasing Flock size: Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity,

hardiness, maternal ability.

Breed: Suffolk

Registered: **CLRC** 

No. of males: Adult: 1

Lamb:

No. of females: Adult: 27

Availability:

**Contact: David & Shirley Thomson** 

Other breeders Source of rams:

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same Usage: Meat

Merits: Maternal ability, carcass quality.

**Breed: Suffolk** 

**CLRC** Registered: No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 88

Availability: Notes: 9 registered. Contact: Mrs. & Mr. Mark Tolton

Source of rams: Other breeders Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Same

Meat, breeding Usage: Merits: Superior productivity.

Breed: Suffolk

CLRC Registered: No. of males: Adult:

No. of females: Adult: 56

Health status: Tested for Maedi Visna

Notes: 61 registered.

**Contact: Mr. Charles Tummonds** 

Source of rams: Own

Conventional Housing: Lambing interval: 8-12 mo. Flock size: Same Meat, wool Usage:

Merits: Superior productivity, year-round lambing,

hardiness, maternal ability.

**Breed: Suffolk** Contact: Joan vanSligtenhorst

No. of males: Adult: Source of rams: Other breeders No. of females: Adult: 39 Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: 1 Lamb:

Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Availability: Yes Flock size: Decreasing Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Superior productivity, hardiness, maternal

ability.

**Breed: Suffolk** Contact: Mr. Kenneth Webster

Source of rams: Own, ROP Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult: Housing: Conventional No. of females: Adult: Lambing interval: 12 mo. Availability: Flock size: Increasing Notes: 8 registered. Breeding

Merits: Superior productivity, hardiness, maternal

ability.

Breed: Suffolk Contact: Mr. George Wiebe

Source of rams: Own, other breeders Registered: **CLRC** No. of males:

Breeder flock: Yes Adult:

Housing: Lamb: 15 Semi-intensive No. of females: Adult:

Lambing interval: 12 mo. 45 Increasing Lamb: Flock size:

Usage: Meat, wool, show, breeding Availability:

Merits: Superior productivity. Notes: 67 registered.

**Breed: Suffolk** Contact: John & Edith Williams

Registered: **CLRC** Source of rams: Other breeders

No. of males: Adult: 5 Breeder flock: Yes

Conventional Housing: Lamb: 10

Lambing interval: 12 mo. No. of females: Adult: 80 Flock size: 50 Increasing Lamb:

Meat, wool, show

Merits: Low maintenance, superior productivity, hardiness, maternal ability.

**Breed: Suffolk** Contact: Mr. J.C. Wilson

Other breeders Source of rams: Registered: **CLRC** 

Breeder flock: No. of males: Lamb: Yes

Housing: Conventional No. of females: Adult: 17

Lamb: Lambing interval: 12 mo. Availability: Flock size: Decreasing Yes

Meat, show, breeding

Merits: Superior productivity, maternal ability, flocking

instinct.

Breed: Suffolk

No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 13

Availability: No

Contact: Mr. Al Young

Source of rams: Other breeders

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat

Merits: Low maintenance, disease resistance, hardiness,

maternal ability.

**Breed: Targhee** 

3 No. of females: Adult:

3 Lamb:

Availability: No Contact: Stephen & Annajane Lawrie

Source of rams: Own, other breeders

Conventional Housing:

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Year-round lambing, hardiness, maternal

ability, wool quality.

**Breed: Texel** 

No. of males: Adult: 12 No. of females: Adult: 400

Availability: Yes

Notes: Ideal terminal sire.

Contact: Mr. Thomas Eggertson

Denmark Source of rams:

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Meat Usage:

Merits: Superior productivity.

**Breed: Texel** 

Registered: **CLRC** No. of males: Adult:

No. of females: Adult: 5 Lamb:

1

Availability: No

Notes: 6 registered.

Contact: Mr. David Mastine

Source of rams: Denmark Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Conventional

Lambing interval: 12 mo. Flock size: Increasing Usage: Meat, wool

Merits: Low maintenance, maternal ability.

**Breed: Texel** 

No. of males: Adult: 11 Lamb:

30 No. of females: Adult: 63

> 15 Lamb:

Availability: Yes **Contact: Michiel & Grace Messing** 

Source of rams: Own, UK

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 12 mo.

Flock size: Increasing

Storage of semen/embryos: 280 doses of semen (8

rams)

Usage: Meat Merits: Meat quality.

**Breed: Tunis** 

National Tunis Registry Inc. Registered:

No. of males: Adult:

Lamb: 8

No. of females: Adult:

13 Lamb:

Availability: Yes Contact: Mrs. Valerie Ames

Source of rams: Own, USA

Breeder flock: Yes

Conventional

Housing: Conve Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Increasing Meat, wool Usage:

Merits: Low maintenance, year- round lambing, hardiness, materal ability, flocking instinct, wool

quality.

**Breed: Tunis** 

No. of males: Adult: No. of females: Adult: 12

Lamb: 8

Availability: Yes Contact: Ms. Cheryl Johnstone

Source of rams: Own

Breeder flock: Yes

Housing: Semi-intensive

Lambing interval: 8 mo. Flock size: Same Meat, wool Usage:

Merits: Year-round lambing, hardiness, wool quality.

SUMMARY OF SHEEP BREEDS IN CANADA.

Breed	Total number of				
	Farms	Males	Females	Malest	Femalest
Barbados Blackbelly	12	28	129	0(6)	1(29)
Black Welsh Mountain	3	9	19	1(6)	4 (9)
Bluefaced Leicester	1	4	0	4 ( 4 )	0(0)
Booroola	1	7	0	7(7)	0(0)
Canadian Arcott	12	89	575	1(31)	0(250)
Cheviot	12	20	157	0 (4)	0(45)
Clun Forest	7	48	301	0(20)	3(100)
Columbia	9	65	489	0(32)	2(270)
Corriedale	14	28	296	1 (4)	0(87)
Cotswold	9	12	67	0(6)	1(24)
DLS	1	12	46	12(12)	46(46)
Dorset	64	211	2004	0(15)	0(180)
Finnish Landrace	10	24	302	1(6)	0(97)
Hampshire	52	220	1304	0(18)	0(105)
Icelandic	3	21	155	0(20)	5(120)
Jacob	11	23	100	0(10)	1(50)
Karakul	10	24	120	0(6)	1(45)
Katahdin	11	47	393	0(20)	3(212)
Leicester	40	72	536	0(7)	1(57)
Lincoln	12	44	331	0(12)	2(100)
Merino	4	19	34	1(8)	3(15)
Montadale	2	4	44	1(3)	19(25)
Newfoundland	2	1	9	0(1)	0(9)
N. C. Cheviot	44	99	1134	0(10)	1(260)
Outaouais Arcott	6	33	274	1(11)	20(95)
Oxford Down	22	76	319	0(12)	0(39)
Polypay	10	5 5	1178	0(20)	0(600)
Rambouillet	21	167	1310	1(27)	0(350)
Rideau Arcott	11	61	436	1(15)	0(110)
Romanov	23	8 1	1367	0(11)	0(300)
Romney	19	42	704	0(7)	0(250)
Scottish Blackface	4	13	45	1(9)	3(20)
Scottish Four Horned	1	3	6	3(3)	6(6)
Shetland	2	49	413	4(45)	13(400)
Shropshire	13	35	184	0(12)	1(36)
Southdown	37	127	629	0(19)	0(62)
St. Croix	1	1	6	1(1)	6 (6)
Suffolk	193	686	6902	0(50)	1(180)
Targhee	1	2	3	2(2)	3(3)
Texel	4	17	90	1(11)	5 (45)

Source: Shrestha, J.N.B. 1994. Domestic Animal Genetic Resources in Canada. Proceedings of the Third Global Conference on Conservation of Domestic Animal Genetic Resources. Queen's University, Kingston, Ontario, Canada. † Min(Max).



DATE	DUE		
DEC - 5 1995			
			PRINTED IN U.S A.
GAYLORD		la de la companya de	

